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3sir Hesafl elr(Horo ay.qrrropa

H a qio n an o ru i fi xorw ic i:i, u4o 3 d i il c H ro € d e p flc tt s H e p e zynto I aHHfl
y c$epi punxie cliruarucorux ngcnyz

Vqscquxait TOB TUIIHEYPA YRPAIHA "
Repieruu4mey TOB "JIIHEWAWPAfiIIA "

3sir Iqoto Sinauconoi seirHocri
Tonapzcrna s od*rexenorc niAnoeiga"urnicuo " JIIHEyPA yKPAIHA" sa 2019 pix

fyuxa b wcmepe)rceHHnw

. F{anau .npoBgAe_I_o___3y,4tl-_Q!g_a5c9e9i sni:Iocri Tona-pz-crna : o6uexrenoro
nignonilanrnicuo "JIIHEyPA yKPAIHA " (xoA enP[Oy 42753492; NricqesHaxoAx(eHH.s:
02081, na. Kuin, nyn.. fluiupoBcbKa Ha6epeNna, 6yAulrox 25, uprarvriulenns 318; 4ara gepNanuoi
peecrpaqii 15.01.2019.), ua4ani Tonapucrro, uo AoAaerbcq, qKa BKJrroqae 3nir upo (fiHaHconufi
craH Ha 31 rpyaux 2019 poxy,3nir rpo cyKyruufi loxil (3eir upo (fiuanconi pesynrrarra) sa
2019 pir, 3nir upo pyx rpomonux xorurin (sa npalrrrM MeroAorvr) za2019 pix, 3ni:r npo uacuuft
xauiral sa 2019 pir, a raKox flpunrimu go $iHancosoi sni:ruocri sa pir, qo saKiH.rzscs 31
rpyAHlr 2019 pory.

(fiiuaucony gsirHicrr 6yuo crrageHo ynpaBniucrxuu ilepcoHanou ia nuxopr4craHH.[M
Kollqen'ryanblroi ocnoua 4ocronipHoro rroAaHH, B Mexax KoHrleflTyanruoi ouronH 3ataJrbHoto
lpl{3Har.:leHHfl, IrIo fpyHTyerbcfl Ha 3acTocynanni BrIMor Mixnapo4Hr.rx cTaHAaprin Sinauconoi
enirnocri, qo 6ynu.ruuHi ua31.12.2019 poxy.

Ha naury Allutty, 3a BI{HrrKoM MoxJrr4Boro BnJrr,rBy rrr{TauH.fl, on}rcaHoto n pos4ini ooOcuoaa

dnn d.ys,trcu is sacmepe)rceHHflM " Hauroro sniry $iuaucona seirHicrb, ruo ,{oAa€Tbc-s, ni4o6paxae
4ocroripuo, n ycix.cyrreBlrx acrleKTax craH Torapucrna s o6Me)Keuorc ni4nonigalluicto
"JIIHEyI'A yKPAIHA" Ha 31 rpyana 2019 poxy ra fioro $iHanconi pesynsra:ru i pyx
rpolxoRl4x xounie sa pix, Iqo eaxinuuBcfl 3a3HarreHoro Aaroro, niAnosiAHo 4o lr4ixirapoAHr.rx
ciau,rlaprin tpiuauconoi ssiruoc:ri, TIHHHHX ua3l.12.2019poxy, ra niAuoniAae nuuorana 3ar<oHy
Yrpainn <llpo 6yxranrepcrxnfi o6nir m (pinancony sniruicrr n Vxpaiui> nia 16.07.1999}lb
996-XI\/ r.rioAo cKJraAaHHfl (f iHanconoi sBirHocrb).

Ocruoea dnn dynxu ie sacmepeuceHHnw

AyAIarop ue npraftuan yvacri B cnocrepexenui sa iuaeHrapusarlierc HasBHux arrunin i
go6os'sgaHr s 2019 poqi, ocxirnru 6yn npu3Haareuufr nictrs laru ii npoBeAeHH t, aix ua-ssuicrr
au6ipr<ono 6yna ni4rnepAxeHa HaMI,I aJrbrepHarrrBHrrMr.r MeroraMr.r ra nporleAypauu, mi
o6rpyuronylorb AyMKy, ilIo aKTLIBTa ra so6on'fl3aHns. nasnui n Tonapuerni, uu He MoxeMo Aarra
nosHoi ayAl{ropcbxoi rapaurii rqolo sarururin no HHM. IIpu nponeAesni innenrapu:aqii
Tonapucrno He orpl{Maro riA AeflKHx ae6iropie ra KpeAr4ropin ni4rnepA}r(eHH.fl ix noroquoi
:a6opronauocri, alie qi cyvra Marorb cymenufi [pore He Bceoxolnrcro.r[fi BrrJrr4B ua (finallcony
3BITHICTb

AyAurop He uepenip.flu ctarri piuuoi Siuanconoi sniruocri, rlo crocyrorbcfl HapaxyBauHf,
Ta cIIJIaTI,I noAarKoBLIx urateNis ra:6opin, ocriltru rle He nepe46a.reuo AoroBopoM Ha
sAiftcueHns aygury.

Mu uponerv ay[r4r nilnosiAuo 4o MiNnapoAHrzx crau4aprin ayrkr'ry (MCA) .

Harny ni4uoniAamnicm sriAHo s MCA Br.rKnaAeHo n pos4ini <<Bidnosidanuuicma
aydumopa sa aydum $iruoucoeoi'ssimuocmi> Haruoro sniry.

Mv e Hesarex(HLIMH no ni4uoureHHro 4o Tonapucrea sri4no s Koderccou emuKu
npoQeciiruux 1yxzanmepie Pagus MiNnapo.qHr.rx craHAapriu eruxh lnfl.6yxran:repin (Ko4erc
Kg%I 

- Illepueurinnrr, *i"i"' IEf;l TOB A<D "Vrcpayarrr XX[ - [Ies.reHrincrra 6iri, "
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PMCEB) ra eTI,IqHLIMI{ BLIMoraMLr 3rirHo 3axony Yrpaina "flpo ay4nr $inanconoi snirHocri ra
ayAl'Iropcbry lirnruictr" Bi4 21.12.2017 pory J\b 2258-Ylil,-sacioconHuMr.r B Yxpaini 4o
Hallroro ayALrry-$inallcoeoi'3BiTuocri, a raKox Br.rroHaJrr{ iuuri o6on's3Kr4 3 err{Klz silnoniaHo Io
rlr4x Br{Mor m Ko4excy PMCEE.
Mu ssaxaeMo, IrIo orpr,Irraani :aavtLt ay1trropcrr<i AoKa3r.r e gocrarrriuuinpufrnrHgMrz.{nr
Bl{Kopl,Icrasus ix rK ocHoBr.r Ans uarrroi AyMKr.r is sacr:epeNeHHrM.

Rnruqo oi numaHH.fl aydumy

Knro'rosi tturaHlr,fl. ay[r4Ty - IIe nrzraHHfl., flKi, Ha Harrre npo$ecifine cyAxeHH t, 6y11u
uafi6inrnr 3Hatryql{Mu ui4 .rac Harrroro ay2Lury Qiuanconoi gnirnoiri sa ,rororrrf nepioa. I]i
TILITaHH, po3uI{AaJILIcb y KoHTexcti naruoro ay.qr,rry Siuanconoi seitHocri n qilouy ra
BpaxoByBanl'Icb rlpu (foprraynanni 4yrranu rloAo uei, uprz rlboMy Mr.r He BlrcJroBJrro€rrab or<perraoi
AyMKLI UIOAO rIUX nr4TaHb.

. _ ^ - Io^lqpl{crBo e HoBocrBopeHIaM 
- 
y :niruouy uepio4i (mra 4ep>xannoi peecrpaqii

l5..0l.20r9po5y,.Aara peecrpaqii sr SiHauconoi ycrauonu - ig.ol.zol9 poxy), ,jaro"iauo
$inancona seirHictr naicr:zri uoxasHr,riIa Jrr4rrre ga gsirHzfi nepio.4, 6es cniecraBHrrx [alarx 3a
uonepe4nifi nepio4.

Eesnepeperuicmu
(DiHaucoei sniru 6yno ni4roroBJreHo na ocnoni rparyrqeHH, rrpo 6esrepepnnicm

$.YnxuionyBaHHt. Ilpra crnaAanni Sinanconoi snirHocri 
- 
ynpauiucrr<rfi repcoHan Hece

BlArloBlAaJlruicrr 3a oqiHxy s4arHocti Tonapucrna [poAoBxyBarr,r cBoro ,(isrtHicrr Ha
6esnepepnnifi ocuosi.

BnxopucraHHfl Ilboro [pmlyqeHH, .rrK ocHoBr.r AJrx o6nixy e uprafiuxurrarra, ,Krrlo
ynpandncrxzff uepcoHaJl He rlnaHye rixni4ynaru Tonapracrno a6o npwruumn 4ixlruic6, a6o
T9 Ma€ oxpiu Ilboro isluoi peanruoi anrrepnar:unu. IIi4 uac nuronanng nauu ayALrry
Sinanconux gsirin_ rr,ru .qifturnu sficHonry, r{o BrzKopr.rcranHfl y[paBrincrruna [epcoHanoM
rpllilyllleHHfl rp9 6tsnepepnnicru (fyurcqionynannx, flrlocHoBr4 anx o6nir<y uil .rac uiAroroercu
Sinanconux sniris Toeapucma, e 4ope.*rzu.

,{lr ua4auHfl _Kopl4cryBauaM Sinanconoi snirHocri o6'exuanuoi iu$opuaqii qoAo
ftinanconoro_craHy Tonaprirna ra 3 Meroro orpr4MaHHs ayArrropcbnr*'abo*i, utoao
MoxJIlIBocri TolaprctBa npoAoBxyBaru cnoro 4ixlriicm na 6esnepepnriif ocuoni, ay,u{ropaMr{
6ynu o6uucleui IIoKIL3HI{KI,I nixniAsocri (nrarocnpoproNuocri) ra Siniuconoi cra6irirocri

OcHosHi [oxit3HtrKtr
(Darnrwre

3HAIIEHHf,HA
31.1220190

Hopruarranne
3HAIIEHH{

Bianoeiauiom
HOpMaTr,rB€M

floxa:nnxn nixsiaHocri (ruaroinpol.roNuocii
KoeQiqreHr rlnIagxoi rixsflHocri (norouuo'l (O6opom u i qKmulu (p. I I S S)-
igno* (p. 1 1 0 0) / Il omouu i s o 6 os' ns au u n (p. 1 6 9 511 (xaparrepntye sAarsicrr
Tonaplrcraa nqacHo floracr{rra cnoi xoporxocrporioni :o6on'qiarirf, s
Ierrourqrcrc nucoxodxei4rux aKmi_B )

1,03 0,6-0,8 +

KoeQiuierr a6comoruoidxnianocri (lpowoai xoumu ma A exeieaaeumu
(p. l 1 65)/ Ilomoqui so6oe'$auun (p. 1 695)) (xaparrepmye nerafnry rorosHicrb
Tonapucrna noracrilr{ cBoro 3a6opronanicrr sa paxyHor nepuorsracHlD(
nixsirrilp( aKflBiB (rporuoslx xoirris ra x exsiBari,ernin). 

^

0,00 0,2-0,35

Koe{iqie}n :ararrHoi rixsiAHo ct
Ifomovui so6oa.'aseuufl (p.1695) (aae:arantrry oqtur(y JrlKBlAHocrl aKrr{BlB,
noKa3yroqu, cKUIbKr,r rprBeHB flororrHtlx arrmiB Tonapucrna nprilta1ae Ha
o.{Hy rprrBHro uoroqmx go6oe'8aHb)

1,03 >1,0 +

floxa:Huxu Siuauqonoi cra6iluroc TI

(p. 1495) / ilidqtuotl 6arurycV (p. 1900))(rrcxa3ye mrroMy Bary MacHorc)
xauirary n sararbrdfi cyN{i saco6iB, aBanconarla< y fior6 aisnrnicru)

0,09 >0,5

KoeQiqieur Qiuanconoi cm6imuocri (Btacuuil rcaniiat@j4ir7@q
so6oe'fiauo i sa6esneveuo (p.1595+p.1695) (euavemrx roKa3Hrrxa BKa3ye Ha
re,-cxipru rpuserr nracHoio xauiriny upiiri4ae na xoxHy rpraHx)
go6os'graru Tonapucraa)

0,4 >1,0

K99plp9$r MaHeBpeHocri xanftwry (Bnacui o6opomui xowmu @TI9S_p.l 695) / hacuuil kaniman (p, 1495))(xoeQiuiem noxasye cnrEBuHorueHHfl
Mpr( MacHlrMr,I oooporHr,rMll pecypcaMr,r i sracril,na xaniralou)

0,35 >0,1 +

Koe(prqregr norpumx soOoB'r3aHb BnacHHM xaniralou (noeeocmporcoal ma
Kopot?xKocnxpoKosi so60s'asauun ma sq^esneqeHHfl (p. I 595+p. I 69' / Bttacnuii
xanimal (p. la.!5)) {yryHarra€ AocrarHicrs sracnoro xanira.rry Toaapucraa 4l_a
noKpurrq csox so6oa'a:aHr,)

I 1,16 <1.0

ffil ,o" Ao "Yrpay4ur XXI - IlIesqeHKis*xa rfinix ,,



3Ha niAcrasi aHanisy uoxasHuxin riKsiAuocri (unarocupoMoxHocri) ay4rarop Moxe zpo6ururpErryrueHHfl:

" 1".,^1gI:Iu3:^.Ip, Heo6xi4uocri, 3a paxyHox ycix Mo6irisosauzx o6oporHvx aKr:Lreis
,,^Ty9^u]!Lo_:r9Te roracr.rrr.r o6csr noro.rHrai so6oeirsa$b 3a po3paxyHKaMr{;
Ha ntAcraBi aualisy, noxagnrxin QiuaHconoi cra6imnocri ay4r.irop nadxe zpot6uruBr4cHoBoK:r' ua 31.12.2019 p..oKy HeAocraris m,IroMa Bara BrracHoro Karrlrany 

" 
.u.aririr ryrI r"ui.]bi",

, aBaHcoBaHr{x y fioro 4irnsuicru;v I oBapHcrBo lt4ae Aoct'trb BI4coKy sanexHicm nig sanyveurax saco6in ra ue4ocrarllicrr
BJracHoro xanimry AJr{ [oxprtrrs csoix go6on,sgarm.

3i6pani toxasra ra anariis aismsocri * ;ffi;; ayrptrop.aM ni4crany cyuuinaracr n
:I3::,9,:li -I::1ry:L 6::,ryP"pBHo 

. npo.4oBxyBarh c,ifro [il";iA;.- 6"*'";;;;;;i;";
llllYal'IHl rpouelypE ra eri4uo aualisy $iuancon-oro craHy Tonapncrn a Mvr ue suafiuua
.qoKul3lB fipo [opyueHH, [p]IHqzny 6e:nepepnuocri SynrqionyBaHHfl tonapracrna.

_ _P 
o s rcp ummn i u 8t opa.aqi i' uq o d o 

.e 
uKop u c m oH ua c np a e e d n uo o i a ap m o c m i

Ha rineqr Koxuoro seirHoro ne,piogy toeapucrno gaifiurroe szKrr;.rro 6esnepepnui oqisxz
cnpaBernl'IBoi naptocti axrzsin ra go6be'sganr, rb6ro rari oqiunz, xxi nrauar*or"., MC@3 i3.

-,__^|?:IPY, 
y $iuauconifi seitHocti iH$opNrarlii, non'r:-anoi s o6niKoBuMr.r oqinrauz,

BlAIIoBuae BI'IMoraM 3acrocyBaHH, KoHrlenrya-uruoi ocHoBr,r Siuanconoi seirHocri nilnoeiAHo
ao MCA 540 <Ay4ur o6lironux oqiHox,. y-roMy qr.rcrri oOuirconz* orli"on 3a cnpaBeAJrrrBoro
napricrro, ra roB' s3ani g nuura po3KpHTu iri6 oprroaqii>>.

Iu(popnaallir po3Kpura s r. 7 .2.i, 3.]r3, i .i: npw,rirox Ao pi.rnoi $iuanconoi geirHocri.
3ueqiueuua arcmueia

Ha 4aty cKnaAaHH,:riry npo SinaHconuft cran Tonapzcrno oqiHzro (fiuauconi aKrurBvt,
Ha npeAMet sHeIIiHeHux sri4uo s sl,IMoral.{r,r Mixnapoauo.o craHAapry SiHauconoi seirHocri 9<(DinaHcosi inctpyrr,reHrla)). B sn'aery a ua6panuxu.ruHHocri MC'Oj q s f.gi.rgig p;.i
Tonapuctno yxe.is cal.{oro ruoruenry ,ragnauHs SiuaHconoro aKTr.rBy na 6ananci ouirL;'i
BLIs.Hae pe3epB nig .ouir<ynarui, a He EoHeceui, xpeaarni 

"Airi"^il 6iiurr.orrM aKrr,rBoM.ouirynaui rpe4Iatni g6utru qe cepeAHbo3BaxeHe 3HarreHH-f, KpeAr{THr.rx s6lrrrin, ,q;
BI'I3HarIeHe 3 BHKopucraHHrM nignoniAunx fiuonipHocrefi nacranHs no4ift A.Sorry 

"-n:-:.:.0}1:yis anaNynauns. A xpe4urui 36rarxu, , 
"uo._r.p.y, 

u r.rr"p1.r"o. 
"uprlril pil"rui

Mlx rpo[oBI'IMpI rIoroKaMI{, sri naleNlarb orpl{Mar}r Ton-apracrny :ri4uo 3 yMoBaMr,r AoroBopy,
Ta rporroBr4Mrr rroroKaMu, xxi Tonaprzcrno ovikye orpr{Marr.r.
In(fopMarli, po3rpr{ra e n.7.L 5 rlprzr.rirorc go pirnoi}Oinauconoi ssiruocri.
Toeapucmoo He lwae axmu6ie, nrci suaxodnmbcfl Ha muMqacolo oKynolaHux mepumopinx Vrcpai'uu.
Toeapucmeo ue odeprcyeoto 6 seimuouy nepiodi doxodis eiO iuieciye'on-ii-i**uuiu.

Onepaqii' s no6' fls aHutt4u cmopoHatru
Ay4raropauu npoBeAeno Heo6xiani npoqe4ypu, uo eSex:ranui Ans Aocflrr{eHH.f, Merr.rayLury olepaqifi 3 roB'.fl3aullnar croponaMr4 giiano MCA 550 dtosiff;Hi ;r;p";;;;.Pesyffiraru BHKoHaHr4x [porleAyp .siauosiauo ,u4onyr.rrosaHi i cuiar*u, uo, Ha Harrry

AyMI(y: naalu uicqe HilnexHl4ft o6nix i posxprartx igeuru(firoBaHlrx sii;ocuH ,u on.puqifi ",

I:,r_:l:::,:y1_-:Iolo"urz niluoni4Ho Ao sacroconHoi xonqenryamHoi ocHoBr.r Oi;il;;oisntrnocri; BIJILIB riAHocras i ouepaqift rrix non's3alvtMvr cropoHaMr4 e raKrrM, rrlo r'uO;"e"ye
4ocro_nipue noAaHH.f, i ue uorpe6ye xopurynaur SiHanconoi ssirHocri.

IH@opMarlitr po3Kpr{ra s' n. 9 .4 flprnriror ao piunoi ([inauconoi snirHocri.
Posrcpummn in@opaaqit npo cydooi nosoeu ma pezyilnmopui euuozl.t, y4o cymm€1o

6mu6anmb ua dinnuruicmu Toeapucmaa
Ay4Iltopou 6yml npone4eni npo_qe4ypu sriguo MCA 250 <Posrrfln 3axoHoAaBqr.rx ra

HopMarr.rBHux arrin ni4 uac ayl.ury SinaHconoi ssirHocri)), B ToMy .rprcri :4ificHeuo 3ankrryt
ryp::r_i1:"KoMy nepcoHany luo,qo ua-snnocri cyAoBr.rx 

".rpu" 
i"p;r.;;;,-rilo".a.ro

cruJrKyR_aHH, 3 roprrcronr Tonapracrna.
Ctauou na31.12.2019 poxy Tonapuctno He orpr,rMyBarro upercusift nig cropouHix

opranisaqifi Ta r{e [oAanalo npereusifi rourpareHTaM tr<pion cr.f,rneHus npocrpoveuoi
sa6oprosaHocri sa BuLaH:aMpr KpeAI,IraMr,r). Iiporu Tonapicrna He 6yru u'oaalri cy4oni ro3r4Br4, aTaxox Tonapucrn-o He_6yno npurxnryro Ao cy,{oBr.rx clpaB.

Ha dsruHicTb TonaptlcrBa cyrreBo BrJrr.rBarorr perymropui nuuorz Haqrou(liunoclyr,qo uicrrmcx n; t J

- IloloxeHni npo flepNannufi peecrp (finauconux ycraHoB (poauopx4NeHHs nir
28.08.2003 poKy, J\ba f);

- floloNeuHi npo BcraHoBJIeHns o6uexeHb Ha cylriqeunr gixmuocri HaAaHHfl EeBHr{x
nu4in $iuauconnx rocnyr ( satnep4rxeHr4x po3rroprs*.n rrin- 

"ii&.0V.i004;;11y 
1lb 1515)t

ffi] ,O" Ao "Vxpayaur XXI - IllesqeHris*ra @inir 
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4
- JIiqensiftHl{x yMoBax [poBaAxeHH, rocnoAapcrroi 4ixnruocti 3 HaAaHHfl Sinauconux

rocnyr (xpiu npo$ecifinoi Aisnrnocri ua pr.rHKy qinHux nauepin), 3arBepAxeHr.rx
po3rroprAxeHHrM nh 07 .12.201 6 porcy J',lb 9 1 3.

Binrruicrr rI{TaHb IrIoAo AorpI{MaHHfl ur.rx B}rMor 3aroHoAaBqr.rx ra HopMar[rBHzx arrin
TonapncrnoM, rK $iuanconolo ycrauoBoro, po3uurHyro ayALrropoM B pos4iri <Kffoqosi
TII,ITaHHfl) ra n posrlini <3nir niguoni4no g inruuuu 3aKoHoAaBrrr4Mr.r ra HopMarrrBH]rMr.r
BLrMoraMV)) rlboro 3eiry He3aJrexHoro ayAr{Topa.

flpu nponeAenui ay4lrry ayAprropoM ue 6yno BrarBJreHo naxnsicm ropyrreHb Tonapucraou,
BKa3aHI,Ix n 3eiti He3aJrexHoro ayAr{Topa 3aroHoAaBqr.rx ra HopMarr.rBHrlx Br,rMor.

P o s rcp ummn iu Q opu ary i t np o s d iil c H e HHtt i c mo mu o z o np a6 o.tuHy
Ilpufiuxma piueunx npo BvuHeHHs icroruoro npaBovuny (napricrr uafina, po6ir a6o

rlocJlyt, uo e npeAMeroM TaKoro npaBoqr.rHy craHoBr,rrb 6inrure siN 10 siAcorxin nap:rocri
axtzsis Tonapucrna sa plaHuv,r4 ocrannsoi piunoi Sinauconoi aniurocri) e suxrro.rHoro
KoMrlereHllierc 3ara-urunx s6opin (m. 9.6 Craryry Tonapucraa, B peAaKrlii ni4 08.07.2019 poKy,
sxufi sarsep,4xeuo Piruennspr JVs3 earuroro yqacHprKa nia 08.07.2019 poKy BcrauoBrreHo, rqo
npuitunrr.t pinlenHs IrloAo_yrJra,qennr 6yAr ^1Toi npanoeoi yroAt4 (4oronopy) TonapucrnoM Ha
cYMy, ara gopinHroe a6o 6irsrua nix 1000 000 rpn e Br.rKJrroqHoro KoMrrereHrliero 3aralrnr,rx
s6opin).

B sn'tsxy 3 TrrM, rqo Tonapucmo 6yno 3apeecrpoBaHe B 2019 poui, Errfl Bvt3HatreHHt
rpurepiro (cyrr,ra) icroruoro rpaBounHy ayArrropoM 3acrocoBaHa napricm axunis Tonapucrna
ua riueqr 2019 poxy.

Icroruuu npaBoqrHou s 2019 poqi nnaNatturcb rpaBoqrzHr Ha cyMy 8261,2 ruc. rpll i
6inrure. Tonapucrno n 2019 poqi icrorsi flpaBorruHu He s4iftu+onaro. Bci npanovzuz
Tonapucrno t4ificnrcnaro eiAnoniguo nauor Craryry.

3anyueuun rcoumis , y moMy rtucni eid Qisuuuux ma npuduuuux oci6

$isuunux oci6 ie 3o6os'.f,sauH.flMl{ rrloAo HacrynHoro ix noeeprHeHns, ycraHoBnenux u.38
JliueHsifiHux yMoB Ne9 1 3.

. TonapucrBo B 2019 poqi rpoBoAlIno 3aryrreHH, rpolroBt4x xorurie Ha niAcrasi goronopie
ni4 inruux $inauconux ycraHoB.

Posrcpummn iuQopuaqit npo de1imopcbKy sa1opzoeauicma sa ue $iuaucosuu4u onepaqiauu
[o cr<na4y ge6iropcrxoi sa6opronanocri sa ue $iuancoBr,rMr,r ouepaqixlara (crarrx 1155

3niry npo (fiualrcoeraft craH craHoM Ha 31 rpy4us2019 poKy), Bxo.{r,rrb:

B cnla4i 4e6iropcrxoi sa6oproeaHocri 3a He $inanconuMrr oneparlisNdz o6rixoByerbc.f,
flonepeAHfl orIJIaTa 3a OpeH.{y flpr.rMlrrleHHfl, 3a KoMyHaJrbHl rrocnyrl,I, rocJrytrr oxopoHr.r,
3B'fl3Ky, perlauHi rlocJlyru, aa iutfoprvraqifino-roHcynlrarlifiui rocJryru, sa niapflIHi po6oiu no
peMoHTy npr.rMlrrleHHfl .

In$opuaqifl npo ge6iropcmy sa6oproeanicrr sa ue SiHancoBvrwvt onepaqixnar po3Kpr4ra
Tonapucrnona sriguo BI,IMor MCO3 (u.n. 7.15: 8.1 .6 llpuuirox 4o piuuoi SiHanconoi' :nirnocri).

P o s rcp u mma i u @ opruaqi i np o np o cmp orte H i s o 6 o e' fl 3 aHHn
Ctauona ua 31.12,2019 poKy B larralaci Tonaplrcrnanpocmpo,aeui so6oe'fl3aHHfl aidcymni.

3eim npo aadanrua eneeruenocmi u4odo soimnux daruux

Toeapucmea s oditutceHoru oidnoeidanwticmro tt JLIHEYPA WPALHA"
sa 2019 pix

Yupanlincmuft nepcoua-n uece niguosiAamuicrb 3a piuui sniuri Aani Tonapucrna.
AyAIaropanru nepenipeuo iuruy_ cyrreBy iuSopua_qio, ulo po3Kpr.rra Tonapucrnou y piuuzx
gsiruux llaluux, Ta rlo,qaHa Ao Haqionarnuoi xouicii, rqo sAiftcHroe AepxaBHe peryJrroBaHHfl y
cSepi punxin Sinanconux rocnyr y niguoni4uocri Ao BLrMor MCA 720 (iep,euruyroro)
< B i4noni4anrnicrt ayAr.rropa rqoAo iunroi iH$ oprvraqii>.

Bud de1imopcoxoi' sa1opeoaauocmi 3a He

Q iu au coouuu onep at1 inuu
Paxyuorc o

6yxz anm ep corcoay o 6n ircy

Rdpadxaa$opni
1<Eatmot

Cyua /e
muc. epu/

Po:paxyHxra 3a roBapri, flocJryrr{, seo6xiAsi Alx
npoBeAeHrur rocroAapcbxoi [islurocri rpinauconoi
ycTaHoBr{

685,631 I 155 2218
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,{ianrnicm Tonapucrna gAificHroBirJrac.fl eiAuosiAHo Ao upunzcin qI'IHHoro

3aKoHoAaBcrBa, 3oKpeMa: 3axony Yxpaiuu <IIpo $iuanconi [ocJlyr[ Ta AepxaBHe peryJlroBaHH.t

punrie (financonui nocnyr> rlit 12.07.2001 p. Ilb 2664-III is gNaiHaMI4 ra AoTIoBHeHHxMLI,
ilopxarcy HaAaHHfl gniurocri $iuanconuuu xolvruauiaur,r, (financoruuu ycraHoBaMI'I

ropgArartr{r.ruu _oco6auu ny6uiunoro [paBa, 4onip.rzrraI,I ToBapI,IcrBaMLr, a raKox IopI'IArITIHI'IMI4

oco6arrn, - cy6'exraur4 r'oc[oAaproBaHHfi, ,rr 3a cBolM [paBoB]IM crarycoM He e (pinancoBI4MI'I

)'cTaHoBaMH, ane MaroTb BV3HaqeHy 3aKOHaMI4 Ta HOpMaTI,IBHO-IIpaBOBI,IMI{ aKTaM}I

lepx$inuocnyr a6o Haqxorr,rsiHnocJryr Moxrranicrr HaryaBarv rlocnyrv s Sinanconoro lisuury,
3arBepAxeHoro po3rropqAxeuHsN{ Haqionamnoi xorrricii, ulo gAifi-c_nrce AepxaBHe perynrcBaHH,

)' csepi punxin SiHauconux rocnyr eia 26.09.2017 Ns 3840 ra 3apeecrpoBauoro B

Minicrepcini rocruqii Yrpaiun 24.1 0.20 17 za Ns 129 4 I 3 | | 62.
Inrua iriQoprtaaqis crla.iaemcs s in(fopuaqii, fiKa Naicu,rrrcs B piunr'Ix seirHux AaHI'Ix

Tonapucrna za20l9p:
- rr.rrynbHlrfi apryur (aoaaror Jt6);
- aorima upo o6cri ra xilsxicrb yxnaAeHr,rx i ruroualllrx AoroBopin s na4aunr lpinaucoBl4x
uocnyr.(4oaaror Ns7);
- AosiAxa [po yxnaAeni Aoronopr{ 3 HaAaHH.f, KoITITIB y rIo3I4Ky B ToMy .ILIoJII Ha yMoBax

Qinanconoro KpeAllry (4o4aror J\b 1 2) ;
-. ir$op*ur{iq qoAo crpyKrypra ocHoBHoro raniranry $inancono'i ycraHonu(4o.uaroK J\b14);

- inS6pirauis uo,uo aKrueie (financonoi yctauonu(.qo.qarox J\b15).' Hu-a AyMKa rqoAo $in^auconoi gsiiHocri He roruuprceTbc.{ na lqIuy iHQopnrallilo ra MI'I He

po6uuo uucu-o"or< s 6y4rixuvr pinnerr.r BreBHeHocri rqo.qo qiei iuuroi iu(poprr,raqii.' y sn'r3xy 3 HarrrrrM ayAr.rroM (finauconoi gniruocri uanroro eiAuosiAanrnicrro e

osHafio1dr.rrr4cs. 3 inruoro iu([oprr,raqiero ra rrpu IIboMy po3rJlsuyrv, qu icuye cyrreBa
uesiAuosiAnicrr rr,riN iuruorc inQopnraUiero i (fiuancoBolo geirHicrrc a6o uauruul4 3HaHHxMI'I,

orpr.rMaHr,rMra niA.rac ayr.lrry, a6o qu qs iuura in$opuaqiflBvrcilflIlae raKolo, ulo ruicrzrb cyrr€Be

. ocHosi flpoBeAegoi uauu po6oru crocoBuo iuruoi iu([opnaallii rrala AoxoAHMo
icuye cymere Br{Kpr4BJreHus-qiei inruoi in(fopMallii, uu so6on'nzaui noniAourzru

Br{Kpr,rBJreHHfl.

-f,rqo ua
BprcHoBKy, rqo
npo qefi (far<r.

Mz ge BnflBvrlrfi TaKI,Ix (farrin, xri uorpi6no 6yno 6 urrlo'ruru 4o sniry.

B id n o e id on o nicmt y np aenin c o xo z o n ep c o H ilny z a (t iu an c o o i s o im u

Ynpauiucrxuft uepcoHaJr Hece siAnoeiAanrnictr 3a cKnaAasus i 4oc:ronipue rIoAaHHfl

(financonoi ssirHocri sianosiaHo Ao MCO3 (xouqenryulJlbHa ocHoBa AocroBlpHoro rIoAaHHfl

3araJrbHoro npr.r3HarreHnx) ra 3a raKy clrcreMy nuyrpiurHtoro KoHTpoilro-,.tKy ynpauiHcnrufr
nepcoHirn Blr3Harrae .rorpi6noro Arg ioro, rno6 sa6esueqLrtr4 c_KJIaAaHHfl {iuanconoi gsirHocri,

rrlo He Mrcrr4Tb cyrreBr{x Br.rKplrBneHr suacriAox uraxpaficrea a6o TIoMI4JIKI,L

IIpu cxiraaallui (finaHconbi snirHocri ynpanducrxuft repcouail Hece niAnoniAaluricm sa

ouiury gAaruocri Tonapzcrna rpo,qoRxyBarv cBolo AunbniC-m ua 6eauepepnuifi ocuoni,
po3Kpr{Barorrr4, Ae rle 3acrocoBHo, rrr,rraHHfl,IrIo crocylorbca 6esnepepeHocri 4ixltnocri, ra
Br,rKopl,IcToByroqu trpI,tnyqeHHq IIpo 6esnepepnuicrr Aiglruocri qx ocHoBI'I,4JIf,

6yxranrepcbKoro o6riry.

B id n o e id antuicmt ay d umop a e a ay d um (tinaaco o of s s imn o c mi

Haruuull uil.suu e orpr{MaHur o6rpyuronauoi BIIeBHeHocti, ulo_ $iuaHcona rniruicrs y
qinorray ne uicrum cyrreBoro Bt4Kpr{BneHns sHacriAox ruaxpaftcrsa a6o rIoMI{JIKI4, Ta BI{rIycK

soiry ay.uuropa, rlo uicuars Harry AyMKy. O6rpyutotana BreBHenicm e BI,IooKIIM pinnervr

BrreBHeHocri, upore He rapaHTye, qo ay;.ry, flpoBe,4eHllfi eianoniaHo Ao MCA,3aBxAI4 BrrflBrrrb

cyrreBe Br,rKpHBneHHf,, sKrrlo BoHo lcHye. BunpuueHH, Moxy'Tr 6yrn pe3ynbrarou uraxpaficr:na

a6o rroonapr; ,olru BBaxarorbcfl cyrreBr{Mu, rxl{o oKpeMo a6o e cyKyrlHocri, xr o6rpyHToBaHo

ouixyegcx, BoHrr Moxyrb BrrJrrrBarr{ Ha eKoHoMiuui piruenHfl Kopl4crynauie, rqo npufirr'ta}orbcfl

ua ocHosi qiei (biuaHcosoi seituocri.
Buxouyrouil ay1Lkrr ri,{uosiAHo Ao Br.rMor MCA, MLt Bplropl{croBy_eMo npoSeciftue cyA}I(eHHfl Ta

npo$eiifiuraft cxenruqlI3M llportroM ycboro 3aBAaHHfi 3 ayAlrry. Kpiu roro,.nau:- - ,ti4enru(firyeMo ra oqiuroerr,ro pr{3r{KI,I cyrreBoro B}IKpI4BneHnr (piuancosoi ssirHocri
suacriAox ulaxpatcrna qI{ IIoMI4TIKII, po3po6lfleN,Io fi nzrouyeYo 1l1"19!.lnr_Ip_o1?M: J
siAuosiAr na qi pvr3r4Kpr, a raKox orprrMyeMo ayAl4TopcbKl AoKa3H, IrIo e AocrarHlMlr ra
upuftnrr:uuMlr AJu BlrKopr4craHH.fl ix sK ocHoBI,I AJItr Halrroi aqurol., l11"n HeBI4.flBJIeHH.fl

cyrreBoto Br,rKprrBneHuq sgacri.qor ruaxpafrcrBa e BI{IrIIrM, Hlx An{ BLIKpI'IBneHHfl BHacJITAoK

E] ,o, A@ "Yrpayalrr XXI - lllesqeuriscrxa Qirir " 5



6IIoMI'IJIKI'I, ocKinbKl4 Ixaxpa-ftcrBo Moxe Brrrorrarr4 3MoBy, ui.qpo6xy, uaeN,rucHi npolyc1rr,He[paBI4JIbui rnepgxesus a6o HexryBaHHfl 3axoAaMr.r BuyrprlrHboro KoHTponrc;
r'orpr4MyeMo poeyuinux :axogin nayrpiruuroro KoHTpoJrro, ulo crocyrorbcfl ayuury, Anflpospo6xu ayAr.rropcbKr{x rpoqe.qyp, ari li nianonia.*; ;d;;;;;;;,-;;; An.n Br4crroBne,H.n

AyMKH rrIO.AO esexrunnocri cucrel,rz nnyrpi[ruroro KoHTpo Jrro ;r' oIIlHIoeMo npraftnrtnictr gacrocbnanax o6rixbsux nonirar Ta o6rpyHr:onanic*o6rixosrx ouinor< i niAuoniAuux posrcpumin i"+op^ruqii; 
-;p;^6;";;. 

ynpanrinoruu
nepcoHanoM;

r'Aoxo.ul'IM" 
}T]:-:ry_{oao nprafiurruocri nuropucraHH,, ynpaeniucrKrzM rrepconaJroM

:l-IY,T:Iil _npo 
Oe:nepepnnicrs 4irrsnocri sr ocHoer.r anr 6yirairrepcbKoro oOriln/,u, 

"uocHoBl orpl'IMaHHx ayAl'ITopcbxnx 4oxasin, po6uuo BrIcHoBoK, uricHye cymena HeBu3Haqeuic6EoIo uoaifi a6o yuon, xri nocrasvlu-6 uil gnaqHr,rfi'cyuuin"no'*r"ri*;-1;ir;;;;;
IIpoAoBxt4Tl{ 6esnepepnny 4ixnrnicts. .f,xqo Mra AoxoAr,rMo Br.rcHoBKy rrloAo ioyrun-#;;Icymenoi HeBr43Haqeuocri, upr nonraHni npr.rBepHyrr{ ypry B cBoeMy ,"iii iva";;il;;
ijfl1^:,,1:f,r^ ry:Tprmie iugoprraaqii v 6inu"Jo,iir ,'uirn6.rl ;6;;';-ri; raxi po3Kpr{rrf,rH(popMaull e HeHaJIexHvIMv\ uoAz$ixynarl,I cBolo AyyKy. Harri BkrcHoBKrl rpyHryrorb cfl HaayAI'ITopcbKHx AoKa3ax, orpf.IMaHI'Ix Ao AarI{ Hallroro sniry ay1zTopa. Brinr uafibyrri no4ii uOo
)aIoBI'I Mox_yr6 rpIaMycI'ITI'I Tonapucrno [prmLIHI4ua cnoro-4isnrnicir na 6esnepep"rit 

"&"*. 
"

r' oulHloeMo 3araJIEHe [o.{aHur, crpyxTypy ra slricr ([inauconoi ssirHo6ri sr<rrrcqHo s
n-3,|P^i}y, lltopy.uuii, a raxoN re, vrE-noxasye sinauconi ssiiHi;; ;;;p"qii d r;;i.,;-,q;troKna.{eHr B ocHoBy ii cuaAasus.,Ta:r) ulo6 Aocsrrra 4ocronipuoro ni4o6puro.'rrr.

Mu uosiloMJlf,eMo rI'IM, Koro 
"uair'"ro ";fr;;rrfr;-nounouu*enHrMlr, iuQopir,rarlirc rpo3arJraHoBaHuir o6csr.i qac npoBereHHs. ay[ury ra cyrr€Bi ay4uropc"oi pffiirurr,

Bl(nloqaloqra 6y4s-xxi cymeni ueAonixu saxo4in nnyrpiruuroro KoHTpoJrro, Br,rrBJresi uanau uiaqac ay4l1rry.
Mu raroN HaAa€Mg rLtM, Kofo uaAineuo nafinzqunal4 [oBHoBaxeHHqMr4, TBepA]r(eHHf,, r{o

\rr-r Br{-KOHaJru nilnonilui erh.rHi Br.rMorur uloAo nesareNHOCri.

- 3 uepenixy ncix [I4TaHb, in(fopMarlis ruoao rnr* *ruau"aJracb rr.rM, Koro uaAirenouafinr[1altl4 rIoBHoBaxeHHflMI{, Mr4 Br,I3Harruluri,rrlo *u;rla nafi6imlre a"urarrry ni4 uac
ay.4rlTy Si-lranconoi ssirHocri rroroqHoro nepiogy, ro6ro ri, xxl e xirro.ro-"r*" 

"rraHHf,Mr.ra,yAury. Mu onucyeuo qi m.rraHH, n cnoeuy sniii'ay4r.rropa.

3sim eidnoeidno s iuwumu saxouodaoquttu ma Hop,ufimanHuMa nuMozuila

ToB (JIIHEyPA yKPAIHA> sriftcHloe csoro Aismsicrr ni4noni4no Ao orpr.rMagoro
cai4orpna ryo repTaB.rry peecrpaqiro.Qiuauconoi' ycraHoBr4 fc.pi, or--__ m ilii ;iA D.o3 .2019),po3rop'AxeHus Haqiougls^noi rouricii,.qo grificrrce aepNa"ue peryrrroBaHHx y c(fepi praiixin
QiHauconuT5_o-glyf sit19.03,?019 p. l,{b 394;'si6-ca6 hlrtrr;r-ffi.-;;.diz,;ToB',JIIHEyPAyKPAiHA,'upona4urbcBoIo.oc.,offiuanigcrani
o.tepNauoi6escrpor<onoiriqeHsii: -

-.-_--.:_ l?:I9!1r*enug Haqiona-nruoi 
-xoryricii, 

qo s4iftcrrroe AepxaBHe perynroB aHHn y csepi
pHHKTB QlHaHcoBHx nocrryr }le 529 si104.04.2019 ua rpoBaAxeHna rocnbgapcsroi airrrls'ocii
1,133::lpjuaHcoBrzx 

rocrryr, a caMe Ha HaAaHHf, norurie y rro3r{Ky, y roMy ,r"ri;;il;;;
^ QtHaHCOBOTO KpeIr.rTy;
OcH.oeHI'Ifi BI'IA eKoHoNri'rHoi Aislrsocri Tonapzcrna s 2019 poqi sa KBE[: 64.92 lruuti eudu,:pedumyeauun.

-l-{9', naaaelbf 
T #g4?Irory il 0 opuaui n, nta crocyerbcs pi.ruoi S inanconoi sniruo criTOB "JIIHEyPA yKpAiHA" sa 2019 pirc.

uufl cv6',
O6os'::::? : y :! ! y, p 

!,i 
u i rt opu a mu e i a 

.d 
o c m am@ nil om o c np o n4 o ctcu o c mi,

vvvo 'Lr^voM ^Purt,Yytl6 t HuPJwurnuglg oocmamHocml Karumary mo nilomocnpouocrcuocmi,

;::,*:,::.yr,,:y:.6/*:y92mt arcoc'mi arcmueia ma pusurcotsotcmi ontepa4iil, di'aip*orw iur,uux")\o'vt'vwttLL' rtyuu)/tttKuoucfftt' )tKUcml qKmUGlB mO pU3UKO6OCmi Onepa4iit, dOdepCrcAUUn t,
':oxosultKi6 i auuoa, r.r4o olaetrcyrcmb pu3uKu sa oiepat4inuu ma fiiiaui;;rr;-oKmusatru

y' Bnacuuil rcanimar
TOB (JIIHEyPA yKPAiHA> e TonapzcrBoM si 100%iHoser,rHr.rl4 rauiranou.

crpyrcrypa BrlacHoro rauirany 
""qo*gg 11!z bp *uppn 

"p"3yerbcr 
HacryrHrrM Lr AaH,,ui{ 3apeecrponanufi xanimn TOB (JIIHEyPA yrp.riina,i;ifi;;iA;;;"'ii*iritsarr"."

)-qacHrlKa l\!1 nia 15.01.2019 poxy r_u ry? sit08.07.2019 poxy cooutuu 22g'gl}.*.rp;rrr; -
airosilae 7 000 000,00 rpu (&arix 1400). -- -' r

eAIEttzr't Y'racunroNa Tonapucrna e 5At (JIIHEyPA)),.rrKe crBopeue y Sopnri 3a1pr.rroroarqionepnoro roBapl'IcrBa ra 4ie ni4noni4no 4o run&oaur.rna Jlzros.un'oi p..rry6;ii;;;;A y
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Peectpi rcpu,{prqHrdx oci6 Jlurosctxoi pecny6ni xu304940941, aapeca: Jlvroncrxa pecuy6nixa, 
7

B irrnrocrr ufi p afion, uicro B inrurcc, nyr. aunacy, 1 i A_ t'2.(Dopuynauux craryrnoro xaniranv rorup".ri ; ;i;6;;*ocb HacryrHr.rM qrHoM :

3apeecrponamufi crurynrzft xauiral sa 31.12.19p. c$^oprr,rosanzfi Br.rKJrroqHo rporrroBr4Mr4

-LlIInaMI'I lcyr'ri 226 916,37 gpgo,.ruo-ni4IgBrAae agla'ila)si ,pffi;;;fi, s*nrt sazta,reHo BlurreHrux eAusoro yuauruxaJrlbl nia 15.01.2019 pory raNsi ,iia OS.b?l)iii'd"iy.' Crauou rua 31.12.2019 pory cy1.ra 4o4arxbsoio Kauirany crlraAae (27g644,77) rp,^, txnfryrBopr,rBcfl 3a paxyHox KypcoBrx pisuuqr B-MoMeHr Sopurynanru craijrr,ri.o ourir:iry.,z flyn*orvr6.26 'ra*rorb cru\w nepe46avero, ,116.';ora.or o pi*6*r^, 36;fiT;;.nzria yTonapracrni nnoNe 6yrIl crnopeumi Pes5pnrizt ranim,rr. Fi.on, 36opin yqac,ozrun no
lopMyBalilno PesepnHoro Soryg' ue 6ylb npruinare, resepaunz O""a fo"up"^ilT, s2ol9poqi ne.TBOpeHo.

.-e6.Heposno4ineuufi npz6yrorc na rineqr ssirHoro poKy crauosuru 1497g4,79 rpu (cra,x
{ Heonra'reHrafi xaniran Ha xinerln"sniruoro nepioly crc ru,*ae 2g93,96 eBpo, ,uo ,,o Kypcy:{EV Ha seiruy 4ary ni4uosirueTa46i,zr rps im^*tr'IZ)sl.

Cranon ua3l '12.201 9 e 6ananci Tonapzcrna ai4o6paNelual macmai xaniran y cpai 6 795 ruc. rpu
?o:rrip BrlacHoro ranirany ni4uoniAae BcraHoBneHaM Br{MoraM s n.7 pos4iry X. oco6n[eocri::{eceHrur in@opuraqii rpo,KpeArzr,y ycrauoBy (,.pil ,.p.;;;oi cnimc.r) ;; fl.';J+y ,IlottotceHun'.t o fl e p tr 

7 
a u u il p e e c mp $ t u au c o aii y c ry !! g 6, 3arBepAxeHoro po3rropffrxeHr{r*

-epNxor'a S innocnyr I& I S OA su2g .i l. 201 3p.' 
- -' - - - r-'-' -^' v

-..QopMa(rf, po3xpura n u. 8.1.8 rlpuuirox ao pivuoi Qiuauconoi ssirHocri.. @opayaaHHfl pnepey sa eiuaHconutvtu aKmLtlqJvru
. BuroHyloqq suNaorll uixlrapo4nr.rx crauAaprin $iuarcosoi snirgocri, Toeapucrno:'rp\rye p*epB qepe3 :ueqineuHx (sueuureuHa xopncHocli) ae6irop.il<"-i'*lOJpro"auocri ro!-,r'rrHHM ouepaqixu, B cyyr ouixynauoro.xpe4uiuoro s6rarxy 

"iA;;;d;; Ao BHMor MCo3 9.
: _ ooprraynauux pesepey Tonapzcr:no.sait6H;-e ;i;;;fi" o lronocrceHH.n npo nopndorc: JD'uysaHH'fl ma BuKop.ucma\Hfl pesepeie sg-QiygucosuAnu aKmueauu Toaapii*uo sa uodennru- -:fl,eauux s6umrcia sidnoeiduobo euuoz ueos g (@i;;rroai iucmpytteHmu>>.Tonapzcrno Br.rxopr.rcroBye *p".5:11r."ia.ia-i".S.S.fS MCO3 9) px po3paxyHKy:<:epny_ui4 s6rzrKr,r n polrraipi, Iuo aopi"rrrce oqlKyBaHr{M KpeAprlrr,ru g6zrrarra.

rlprE rrpoBeAeHHi aysury ay4uiopou 
"e 

6t;;;;;"r6"o 
"ur"rri.ri.rfry-.n "-*{oHo[?Berrx ra HopMarr4BHr.rx Br.rMor ao $op,ryn aHHfl,BeAeHH' o6rircyl aoJiurro"ri ,u

=:TjT-9,.], 
cgoprr,ronanolo.pglgpBy ,ra sri.qir."r, a.OirGp*xoi:aO6pilnanocri.

.-= : opMaurfl po3Kpr{ra e u. 8.1.6 llpuuiror Ao piunoi $iuaucbnoi sniruoiri.-----'
' 

r_ _ ^*!: _:!:! :u-od "reuun. 
To e apucm^ o^4 cu c me.^4u y np aoiluua pus uKo*u-:IlSrrlHHs pr.r3r.rKauu nigirpae BaxJrlrBy poJib y aisnrlrocri Tonapucrni.

-'::oBHl pI'I3I'IKI4' sracrusi ouepaqixrra Tonapucrna, BKJrroqaror" prarn nirniluocri, rpe4uruzfi
;_.: : i5, puuronzfi pI{3r{K.
- - - -:lrHKI{ uo ynpanniHHlo prl3l{Kauu uaqineHi Ha er.rsnreHuf,, anaris ra ynpaui HHfl, pvrs1KaM1r)=: frl Hapaxa€Tbcx TonapucrBo, qepe3 BcraHoBJreHus ni,qnoni4unx rirr,ririn ra rourporin.

3Apeecmp06qHo

CR e epu.
3qpeecmposaHo

CR e EUR

@opnyeauun CR
@opuyoauua CR

cyua o EUR cyMa 6 zOH. ASlna lHeceHHn
Nb doxyueumy

nDo cnJlamvrracHuKa J\bl sia 15.01.2019 rcvnc €RPo
J 500 000,00 108 916,37 20 000,00 642 694.94 29.01.20 9 04 10009

30 000,00 964 042,41 31.01.20 9 04 I 009
25 000.00 803 368,68 04.02.20 9 04 1009
20 000,00 642 694.94 05.02.20 9 04 1009
13 916.37 447 199,03 07.02.20 9 041009
cuura J\b3 )8.07.2019 xync €BpOI )UU 000,00 120 893.96 30 000.00 868 s29,70 02.08.2019 14703
35 000,00 | 013 284,65 11.09.2019 120000
38 000,00 I 100 137,62 27.09.2019 235654
l5 000"00 434 264.85 rs.10.2019 14534s/ UUU 229 910,33 226 916,37 6 916 216,81

TOB A<D "Vrpayar.rr XXI - IlJesqeH(incrxa rpinir ,,
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- Pvgzx nixni4uocri sr.rxe co6oro pr43r{K Toro, uo Tonapucrno He 3Moxe noracraru cnoi
3o6os's3auHfl rro naipi uacrauna crpoxin ikuroro norarrreHHfl.

Ilosraqix lixniAHocri TonapzcrBa perenbHr,rM rrr4HoM KoHTpoJrroerbc, Ta yrrpaBnfl€Tbcfl.
TonaPucrno BI'IKopI,IcroBy€ rlpoqec Aeranbuoro 6ro4xeryBaHH, Ta rrporHo3yBaHH, rpolroBrrx
xourtin.qJL Tolo, qo6 rapaHTyBarl{ nassHicrr areKBarHr{x pecypcin^4lx nuxouauus^ceoix
ulariNuux 3o6os'sgaHr. 3 ueroro ynpanniun, pr.r3r.rxoM rix'siaHocri fonapucrno sgificnrce
rtoniroplEllr ouixynanux rr,rafi6yruix notorin rpbruonux rorurin uia onapuiift,-qo € qacrr4Horo
np o qe cy y np anu i nn fl . aKTvrBaMH/s o 6o e' ss aHHf, M[r.

_,_]oPup|crBo npoBogl'Iu anari3.qxepen $iuancynaHHr 3a nonepe4ui nepio4u ra uprafinaae
BlAloBlAHl piurennx qo.4o ynpauinn.fl aKTr{BaMrz r a ilac:aBaM:z.
Kpe4nruufi pI'I3I4K -_pIr3I4K Toro, qo orHa cropoHa roroBopy rpo (piuanconzfi incrpyueHT He
3\Ioxe BI'IKoHarIn go6oe'-f,gaHus i qe 6y.ue upuur.rHoro suHr.rKHeHHr $iuanconoro s6uiky inruoi
cropoHIl. OcHoeuI'INa MeroAoM oqinxu xpe4zruax pusuxin r<epinnuqrnou Tonapr.r"u u oqiuxa
\?eAl'ITocrlpoMoxHocri ronrpareutin, An, qoro 6y4r-ma AocrylHa iusopnrarlis ulo.qo ix
a [poMoxHocri uExonynarrz 6opron i s o 6on, sg aHHs..
Tonapncrno Bl'IKop[Icronye sacrynni ueroArl ynpanniHu, KpeArrrHr.rMr.r pr.r3r.rKaMr4:
' :riuiru qoAo 6opronux so6on'lsanr;
. .rirtairz uolo 6opronzx go6on'sgaub o.qHoto KoHTpareHTa;

_, _ fTrnorufi puzux - qe pI'I3I{K Toro, IrIo crpaBeAnr{na naprictr a6o :,v,Lait6yrui rpouroni noroxpr
3u QlHaHcoBoro lHcrpyMeHTa KoJrlrBarrdMyrbcs nnacli4ox errliu pranxonux rIiH.
?tIHroeufi pI{3LI( nuutarae y sn.'x:xy s pusrrxauu s6urxin, 3yMoBJreHr.rx KoJrprBaHHxua qin,
:l.lcorKoBl'Ix craBoK. PLIHxoevfi pLI3LIK - rle pv3raK Toto, rlo cnpaBeAJrr{na napric6 a6o
r'tatl6yrni rp.ouoni rIoroKH niA SluauconoroiucrpyMeHTa KoJrr.rBarr,rMyrbcssnacriAoK sr'riH
:lrHxonux qiu.

Kepieuuqroo uplrfiuae yupaeniHcrxi a6o xa(poni piuenux n pasi BrrrBJreHH, ropyrreHb-orppIMaHH{ BcraHoBJlenux nolirux.

I Tonapucrro Ao]p4MyerEc.f, BLIMoT rrloAo sa6oponu 3arytreHH-rr (piuanconax axrunin ni4
:rl3IItrHI4x oci6 is go6on'ssaHHtMlr qoAo nac'rynnoio ix uoneprHeuHfl, ycrauoBnegr,rx n.38
-liueHsifinux yMoB J\b9 1 3.

' B gsirHol{y nepio4i TOB "JIIHEyPA yKPAiHA" Ha4aBaro oAuH ua4 (pinancoBr.rx
:ocr'ryr, a caMe HaAaHH, xorutin y [o3]IKy, y roMy .ultcily Ha yMoBax Siuanconoro Kpe.4r{Ty.
'JSrtexettIrs tuoAo cyuiqenux npbna4Nelrvi snfii rocuo4apcixoi aisrirocri, y.ru"Jurori*
-lo.roNeunflM npo BcraHoBJIeHns^o6N,{eNeHb Ha cyr'riqenux iirruro.ri $iuaucowrx ycraHoB 3
::af,aHH, neBHI'Ix nugin $iuaHconzx nocJlyr 3arBepA)KeHr4M po3flop.f,AxeHHflu ,I(epxannoir.orricii 3 perynloBaHur puurin $inancoBr4x rrocnyr Vxpainu nia g jrrrn, 2004 A. i.f Gl j
.:tKoHynmbcfl.

7 Tonapucrno AorplzMyerbcr Buympiwuix npaaun u4odo uadaruun $iuancoaux noclyz,
::TBepA)KeHux 3araarsunau s6opauu, aKi nianosiAarorb Br,rMotaM, BcraHoBJreHHx Ao raKr.rx
:raBHJI crarrelo 7 3arcouy npo Siuaucoei rayxtagae AoroBopr.r 3 HaAaHHx Sinaucou4x flocnyr:illroqHo eiAnoei.4Ho Ao raKLIx [paBl{n 3 o6oe'sgroBr.rM rrocr4JraHHf,M ua nuyrpiruni rrpanrlra
--- lJaHHfl $inanconux flocJryr.

. TonapucrBo npJ.r nugavi xpe4rarin Br,rKopr.rcroaye Erexrposnzft 4oronip, xrnft
:'r3\Ilulyerbc, Ha cafiri cepnicy_npeA4ryBaHHfl i npu o(fopunel*ri KpeAr.rry ualcralaertcx
: l3IIrraJIbHIrxy n Oco6oeufi Ka6iuer. Konz r<lienr cranr.rm nosHaqr<y n rpi4i npo npufinrrrx
'r.{oB KpeAr4THOtO AotoBopy, Ha4cr4nae cBoro 3roAy Ha orpr{MaHHfl KpeAr{Ty i rpourf
-.::a\oByrorbcfl Ha fioro 6aNxiBcbKy KaprKy, yfona BBaxaerbcx yxna4euoro. [bronip y
-=epoejft Sopnai ni4cyruifi, are uoNe 6yiunagaruuii sa nrr,rororc xrieHra. ' '

@opvru.Aoronopin npo HaAaHHr Tonapzcrnorra $inaucoBoro xpegury/no3r4Kt4 cxraAeui
-: 3arBepAxeui eiAnoniAso lo BcraHoBJreHr,ri srNaor. funosufi floronip npo ,ugarry
: -::aHco_B-olo KpeIHTy.Tonaprcrnou niluoni.qae BI,rMoraM, ycraHoBJreHr,rM 3aKoHoAaBcrBoM, Ta
: -:rri 6 3axouy Yrpaiuu "IIpo $iuanconi rocnyru ra 4epNanue peryJrroBanux prauxin
: -:n aHC OBr.rx rocryr".
_ _ T.orupl{crBo HaF?9B rII4cbM_o_BoMy ra y:uorgy nuuxr(i rnieury (cnoNunauy) iH$oprr,raqiro
:-:roBlAHo Ao crami l2 3axoHy YxpaiHa <IIpo (fiHauconi nocJryrr ra AepxaBHe peryJrroBaHH{
:.=ISr O_inaHcouEx rlocJlyt>>, a raKox po:naiqye_iH@opvaqiro, Br{3Har{eHy qacrr,rHoro 11ep111orc::=-i 12 zaz*aqenoro 3ar<ony, Ha nnaiuouy ne6-cirii (trtipsilwwcreaitiu ) ra ea6esi."yi ii'.:r'a'lruicm.

: .. Posrpurra S^inauconolo ycraHoBoro iu{oprraaqii nignoniluo Ao qacrvrHkruerneproi,
: rroi crarri 12 I <3axouy npo (f inanconi uocnyiu>, 3oKpeMa rrrJrrxoM posuiqenu s fi ua 

.

: -:cHoMy se6-cafiri n o6casi, BcraHoBJleHortay <<IlonoNeiusu upo posrprmx SinancoBnMr{
- 

- 3 -{O "Vxpaygr.rr XXI - [lesqeHrciscrra rfilir ,,
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ycraHoBaMIa in$oprraaqii e saranruo4ocrynuift iH$opMarliirriit 6asi AaHHx npo $iHanconi
ycraHoBr{ Ta Ha se6-caftrax) Siuancouax ycraHoB Ta rrpo BHeceHHf, grvrin Ao floloxennq [po
,{epNannuft peecrp (piuauconux ycraHoB) sia 19.04 2016p. Ns825: - ruKoHy€mbcfl;

piurens y pa3i ron(fnixry inrepecin - npomflzoll 2019 p. r<ouQaixmy iumepecia He *LtHuKolo;

3arBepAx(eHHfl JliqensifiHzx yMoB rpoBaAxeHH, rocnogapcrxoi Aisrsnocri 3 HaAaHHfl

Qinar-rconux rocJryr (xpirr,r npo$ecifinoi Aislruocri na pr{HKy qiuuux ranepin)>, Tonapucrno
lpoBeiro rexni.rHe o6cteNenru craHy npuuiqenux 3a aApecorc M. Kuin, Bynrrrlfl
Bamonyrincrra, 6y.uuuor 23, rloAo AocryrHocri lrs oci6 s iunaniluicrrc ra inurux
uarovro6irbHr,rx rpyrr HacerreHH, ni.qnosiAuo .qo uopl{ AEH 8.2.2.-17:2006 <[ocryunicm
6y4LInxin i cuopy4 An, ManoMo6inruux rpyrr HaceneHHD)

O6crexeunfl craHy npuuiuleuna TonapracrBa rrpoBoAr.rrocs B 2019 poqi JloriHosraNa e.M.
(xnari(firarliftuzfi cepru$irar eilnoeilanrHoro BrrKoHaBrIfl oKpeMr,rx svAie po6ir (nocnyr),
ron'r3aHrrx is crnopeunsN,r o6'eKra apxirexrypn cepir AE }lb 003488 suplankria Minicrepcteou
periona-rrnoro po3Br.rrxy, 6y4inHr.rurBa ra xr.rrJroBo - KoMyHaJrbHoro rocrroAapcrna Yxpainu).

HaAaHHfl (f inanconzx rocJryr Tonapucrnorvr sAificHroerbcfl :

- xepinnuqrn on Toaapucrna (AnpeKTopoM Ta roJroBHr.ru_6yxranre. pona) ;
- nnyrpiurnirra ay.{rrropoM Tonapucrna (repyemcr Iucrpyxqiero nuyrpiruusoro ayAr,rropa
Tonapucr:na), txui,t niguopx4xoByerbc.fl 3araJrbHrzM.s6oparra yuaurzrin Tonapucrna;
- signoni4arbHr4M sa nuyrpiruuifi $iuaucoeufi N,rouiropr{Hr y Tonapncrni.
3a:Ha.reHi oco6u sAificurcrcru nHyrpilunift nourpoJrb B Mexax rroBHoBax(eHb, Br.r3Harreuux e ix
nocaAoBux iucrpyxqixx, a npv [poBe.4euHi nuyrpimHboro KoHTponrc rloAo Aorpr4MaHHfl
3axoHo.qaBcrBa rrpu sAificHeHni onepaqifi 3 HaAaHHfl (piualrconux rocnyr Kepyrorbcf,:
- r{r{HHr,rM 3aKoHoAaBcrBoM Yrpainu;
- ycraHoBqr{M[ AoKyMeHTaMr{. Tonapucrna;
- p iureuuxrrarr 3 araJrbnr.rx a6opin yuacnuxin Tonapucrna;
- HaKa3aMr.r ra po3[opsAxeHHflMr{ AHpeKTopa Tonapzcrna.

BHyrpimnifi uoniropanr $iuaHconux onepaqift sAiftcHroerrcs siAnosi,qanbHr.rM 3a
nnyrpiunifi Siuanconufi uoniropunr Tonapucrna (na niAcrasi flpanran gAifturenirs
nuytpiruuroro $iuauconoro uouiropuury Tonapucrna ra llporpalru ik peanisaqii Ha
nignoni4urafi pir, ari earnepAxyrorbcr,qrapeKropou Tonapucrna.
BHyrpirnniir. ay1ur sAiftculoemcx nnyrpiruuiu ayAaropou TonaprrcrBa na ni4crani floroNesus
npo cnyx6y nuyrpirrHboro aywrry Tonapzcrna.
{o o6on' r:rin nnyrpimHboro ay 4vr opa BxoAr{rb :

- Aorpr{MyBarrrcb Br4Mor rrolroxeHHfl npo cnyN6y nuyrpiruHboro ayry4Ty ra inurux
HOpMaTr.rBHO -rrpaBoBr.rx axrin ;

- cxnaAarr.r sniTu y siauoeiauocri Ao Br,rMor, Br43HalreHr.rx noJroxeHHflM npo cnyx6y
anyrpiururoro ayArrry ;

. 
- Aorpr.rMyBarficfl. ron(pi4enqifinocri iuQopuaqii, orpurr,rauoi upu gAiftcueuui 3aBAaHb

BHyTplrrrHboro ay,{r,rTy ;
- y pa3i Br{sBreHHs $arrin, qo ceiA.rars rpo ganoAigsug g6urxis ycranoni ii

locaAoBr.rMu a6o iuruurru oco6auu, serafiuo noei.qol,rrsrlr upo ue HarJrflAoBy paAy ycraHoBLI Ta
Buoczrr.r silnoeilui sartvcv, B ToMy.rrr,rciri -.go ayAuTopcbxoro snity;.. 

-- KoHTponroBar[ cBoeqacHlcru sAiftcueHu.fl iuneurapusaqifiuoi po6oru y flopflAKy,
BcraHoBJreHoMy 3 aKoHo rIaBcrBoM ra o6rironoro nonirraKoro ycraHoBr.r ;

- Hecrr.r ni.quoni.{anrnicrr 3a cBoeqacue fi sricHe Br.rKoHaHHfl BJracHr.rx Synxqift ra
loKnaAeHLIx na nei 3aBAaHb, 3a nepeKpyrreHu.f, pesyrutatiB ayAI,ITopcbKLtx uepenipox, ix
sesiAnosiAnicrr gifi urocri ;

- cxnaAarr{ :niru nuyrpiruuroro ayrLrry rrpo pe3yJrbrarll flepeBipor, npo 3axorv, nxzri
xa ycyHeHHfl BHflBJreHux neAonixis ra AJrs niAsr,rueHnf, e$ercrunuocri $inancoeo-
rocnoAapcbnoi,(i.amuocri ycrauonu.
Bnyrpirunift xoHrpom, qoAo AorpHMaHHfl 3aKoHoAaBcrBa nprr sAiftcueHui ouepaqift 3 HaAaHHfl

S iuanconux rocJryr, Tonapucrnona gAift cnroerbcs HaJrexHrrM rrr..IHoM.

IIrJrrxoM BrrKoprrcraHHfl si,quoniAuoro nporpaMHoro. sa6esneqeHHr, rrlo sa6esne.rye o6nix
cnoNraea.riB rrocJryr Tonapucrna ra sAificHroe peecrparlirc ix onepaqifi.

ELo, A@ "Yrpayanr XXI - lllesqeHKin*xa Qirir "
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3a6esne.{eHHfl cxopoHHocri rpouroeux romtis i goxyueutin Tonapuctno peanisye sa
)roro oxopoHuoi cnrnanigaqii ra cefi$in 4m :6epiraHHfl rpomoBllx Kollrrin. Toeapuct_no_

3aKoHoAaBcrBa rrloAo rorinroeux po3paxyHrir, ycranonJleHl,Ix flocrauosoro HBY
48 nia 29 rpy4nx}}lT pot<y.

Ocuoeni eidotwocmi npo aydumopcbKy $ip*ty

Barauc (3eir npo $iuanconufi crau) :ea3I.12.2019p. (SopuaJ'lit 1);
3nir npo (pinanconi p*yrrrrilru ( snir upo cyr<yunnfi aoxia) sa2019 pirc ($opua Nl 2);
3nir upo pyx rporuonux rorutis (:a uprrr,ruu uerogona) sa20l9 pirc($oprraa m :);
3nir npo snacnuir raniran sa20l9 pir (Sopua J\b4);
flprarvrirrn 4o $inaucosoi gsitHocri sa pir, rqo gaKiH'rrscs 31

(ayautop Yrpaiuu,
r cepia A J\b000981)

5epesira 2020 pory.

rpyAun 2019 pony.

Banenruna feopriinHa

Torapucrro s o6uexenoro
Ay4rropcrra SipMa'Yxpayrum )O(I -

lllesqemdBcrKa Sini

Horvrep peecrpaUii r PeecrPi 157 4.

ayAuropin ra cy6'errin ayAllTopcbKoi Aiglssocri
"Cy6'erru ayAl{TopcbKoi AisruHocri, rrci Malorb npaBo

o6os'.f,gxosu it ay !;prc $inanconoi 3sirHocti"
Ilb 888 sia 13.01.2020

g 13 ciqns ao 18 6epesss2020

AO "Vxpay4rm XXI - IllesqeHxiscrra t[inir " l0

I 3AKtHqeHHn

llrB aygnropa, txuitnpoBoAHB ..rl t
uepenipxy (ayanrop Yxpaiuu, _..=t,i'{altc.
oepru$ixar cepir A )lb000981LiX' ' "

Horraep 3ilnucy -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

As at December 31, 2019 

(thousands of Hryvna's) note 
December 31 

2019 

Non-current assets 

Intangible assets 4.1.2. 3,788 

Fixed Assets 4.1.3 638 

Long-term financial investments 0 

Deferred tax assets 0 

Total non-current assets 4,426 

Current assets 

Accounts receivable by settlements: 

    On advances issued 608 

Short-term receivables with budget 
0 

Accounts receivable for accrued income 4.1.6 13,817 

Other current accounts receivable 4.1.6 63,609 

Cash and equivalents 4.1.7. 152 

Total current assets 78,186 

TOTAL ASSETS 82,612 

Equity 

Registered (share) capital 
4.1.8. 7,000 

Additional capital 4.1.8. (279) 

Reserve Capital 4.1.8. 0 

Retained earnings (accumulated loss) 4.1.8. 150 

Unpaid capital 4.1.8. (76) 

Total Equity 6,795 

Liabilities and provisions 

Long-term loans in banks 0 

Short-term bank loans 4.1.9. 70,340 

Current accounts payable for goods, works, services 4.1.9. 2,581 

Current liabilities on settlements with the budget 4.1.9. 33 

- For insurance

- On wages 0 

Current liabilities 4.1.9. 118 

Other current liabilities 4.1.9. 2,745 

Total Liabilities 75,817 

Equity and Liabilities 82,612 

Director Pshenichnij A.I. 

Chief Accountant Suhobrus I.P. 
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

For the year ended December 31, 2019 

(thousands of Hryvna's) Note 2019 

Interest income 4.2 47,336 

Other income 4.2 30 

Other operating income 5,487 

Total Income 52,853 

Materials costs 4.2 (74) 

Labor costs 4.2 (1,984) 

Social payments 4.2 (399) 

Depreciation 4.2 (218) 

Sales costs 4.2 (18,592) 

Finance costs 4.2 (1,334) 

Other operating expenses 4.2 (30,069) 

Total expenses (52,670) 

Profit before corporate income tax charges 183 

Corporate income tax expense 4.3 33 

Net profit 150 

Director Pshenichnij A.I. 

Chief Accountant Suhobrus I.P. 
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CASH-FLOW STATEMENT 

For the year ended December 31, 2019 

(thousands of Hryvna's) Note 2019 

Operating activity 

Proceeds from: 

Sale of products (goods, works, services) 

Sale of products (goods, works, services) 635 

Proceeds from Return of advances 111,971 

Proceeds from debtors forfeit (fines, penalties) 0 

Other receipts 3,429 

))0Payments for Goods (works, services) (11,718) 

Spending on wages (1,495) 

Expenditure on social measures (402) 

Of the duties of taxes and fees (405) 

Payment of other taxes and fees (405) 

Payments for repayment of advances (19,852) 

Advances in payments (156,825) 

Other spending (342) 

Net cash flow from operating activities (75,004) 

Investment activity - 

Expenditures on acquisition of financial Investments - 

Proceeds from interest paid - 

Net cash flow from investment activities - 

Financial activity 

Proceeds from equity 3,213 

Borrowing 75,414 

Repayment of borrowings (3,250) 

Net cash flow from financial activities 75,377 

Net cash flow for the reporting period 373 

Balance at the beginning of the year 0 

Effect of changing foreign exchange rates on the balance of funds (221) 

Balance as of the end of the year 152 

Director Pshenichnij A.I. 

Chief Accountant Suhobrus I.P. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

For the year ended December 31, 2019 

Notes 
Share 

capital 

Additional 

capital 

Retained 

earning 

Unpaid 

capital Total 

- - - - 

150 150 

7,000 (279) - (7,000) (279) 

- - - 6,924 6,924 

(thousands Hryvna's) 

Balance as at January 01, 2019

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Currency exchange differences 

Transactions with owners 

Registered Capital 

Paid in Capital 

Balance as at December 31, 2019 7,0000 (279) 150 (76) 6,795

Director Pshenichnij A.I. 

Chief Accountant Suhobrus I.P. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To the financial statements 

for the year ended December 31, 2019 

"LINEURA UKRAINE" LLC 

42753492 

1. Information about the Company

Full name: LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY "LIINURA UKRAINE". 

Abbreviated name: LLC "LIUNDRA UKRAINE". 

Company Location: Kyiv, Dniprovska Naberezhna str., 25, p. 318; 

Date of State registration: 15.01.2019 Shevchenkivska District State Administration in Kyiv; 

Legal form: limited Liability Company; 

Country of registration: Ukraine. 

State Commission for regulation of Financial services Markets: 

- Credit financial institution registration: 19. 03.2019 р. FK № 1177;

- Main activity for KVED: 64.92 other types of crediting.

Intercity code and Phone: + 38 044 227 07 33 

Official web-page: https://credit7.ua/ 

The Company is another credit institution, business entity, which operates on the principles of 

initiative, economic and legal independence, profitability. 

Number of employees as at reporting date 36 

Responsible persons: 

Director Pshenychnij Andriy Ivanovych 

Chief Accountant Suhobrus Iryna Pavlivna 

The economic environment in which the Company operates 

Despite the fact that Ukraine's economy is recognized as a market, it continues to demonstrate 

features typical of the transition economy. These features include, among other things, the 

availability of currency that is not freely convertible outside Ukraine, currency restrictions and 

control, relatively high inflation and high interest rates. The stability of the Ukrainian economy 

will largely depend on government policies and actions aimed at reforming the administrative and 

legal systems, as well as the economy as a whole. As a result, economic activity in Ukraine is 

related to risks that are not typical of developed countries. Economy of Ukraine is prone to market 

fluctuations and lower rates of economic growth in the global economy. Today the economy of 

Ukraine is undergoing a difficult stage of the economic crisis. On the Ukrainian economy affect 

market fluctuations and lower rates of economic development. The consequences of the financial 

crisis have resulted in instability in capital markets, substantial deterioration of liquidity in the 

banking sector, complication of lending conditions in Ukraine, which affects the economic and 

investment climate in the middle of the country. Further economic development of Ukraine largely 

depends on the effectiveness of the economic, financial, and monetary measures undertaken by 

the Government, as well as from changes in the tax, legal, regulatory and political spheres. The 

tax, currency and customs legislation in Ukraine allows for different interpretations and changes 

frequently, and the tax reforms in Ukraine continue. Management cannot predict all trends that can 
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affect the financial sector and other sectors of the economy, as well as what impact (if any) they 

may have on the future financial position of the Company. Management is confident that it takes 

all necessary actions to ensure stable activity and development of the Company. 

2. Basis of presentation of financial statements 

2.1. Declaration of conformity 

The management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements, which fairly presents 

the financial position of LLC "LINEURA UKRAINE" as of December 31, 2019, as well as the 

results of its activities for the year ended 31 December 2019, cash flows and changes in equity, in 

accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter referred to as "IFRS"). 

The composition of this information is determined by the professional judgement of Company 

management. 

2.2. General provisions and composition of financial statements  

The financial statements of the Company are the financial reports of general purpose, formed for 

the purpose of reliable presentation of financial position, financial results of activities and cash 

flows of the Company to meet the information needs of a wide range of users in making them 

economic decisions. 

The conceptual basis of these financial statements are accounting policies and principles based on 

the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter – IFRS), International 

Standards of Accounting (IAS) and interpretations (IFRIC) issued by the International Accounting 

Standards Board (IASB), as amended on 01 January 2019, officially published on the web site of 

the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine. 

The Company prepared the financial statements clearly and without any reservations complies 

with the requirements of the existing IFRS with the changes made by IASB, compliance with 

which provides a reliable representation in the financial statements, namely, relevant, reliable, 

comparable and understandable information. 

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company also followed the requirements of national 

legislation and regulations on the organization and maintenance of accounting and financial 

reporting in Ukraine, which do not contradict the requirements of IFRS. 

The Company maintains accounting in accordance with the requirements of the current legislation 

of Ukraine. These financial statements are based on the following accounts with adjustments 

necessary to bring it into compliance with IFRS in all material respects. The Company prepared 

the financial statements clearly and without any reservations complying with all the requirements 

of the existing IFRS with the changes made by the IASB as of January 1, 2019, whose compliance 

ensures reliable presentation of information in the financial statements, namely, relevant, reliable, 

comparable and understandable information. 

The financial statements are also compliant with the regulatory acts of the National Commission 

for State regulation of financial services markets, which are effective as of the date of financial 

statements preparation. 

These financial statements include: 

Form #1 Balance sheet (Statement of financial position) 

Form #2 Statement of Financial Results (Statement of comprehensive income) 

Form #3 Statement of Cash flows (by direct method) 

Form #4 Statement of changes in equity 
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Notes to the Financial statements, in accordance with IFRS requirements. 

These notes are an integral part of the reporting and comply with the financial status of the 

Company. 

2.3 Going concern Assumption 

The Company operates in an economically stable environment, complicated by the sharp 

fluctuations of the exchange rate and the armed conflict in the east of Ukraine. Since it is not 

possible to reliably assess the effect of the economic situation on the financial position of the 

Company, there is uncertainty that can affect future operations and the possibility of preserving 

the value of assets. 

Financial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern assumption, whereby the 

realization of assets and repayment of liabilities occurs in the course of normal activities. Financial 

statements do not include adjustments that would have to be carried out in the event that the 

Company could not continue the implementation of financial and economic activities in 

accordance with the principles of business continuity. Management staff, assessing the 

appropriateness of the going concern assumption, takes into account all the available information 

about the future-at least 12 months from the end of the reporting period. Thus, as a result of the 

evaluation, management staff does not have information about material uncertainties related to 

events or conditions that may cause significant doubts about the ability of the Company to continue 

on a concern basis. 

2.4. Functional and presentation currency, rounding 

The financial statements of the Company are represented in the national currency of Ukraine 

(hryvnia), which is a functional currency. All financial reporting data is represented in thousands 

of Ukrainian hryvnias. 

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency are initially evaluated and recorded in accounting in 

functional currency, by translating the amount in foreign currency at the official rate of the NBU 

hryvnia to foreign currencies on the date of transaction. 

At the end of each reporting period: 

-Monetary items in foreign currency are translated to functional currency on the balance sheet date

at NBU rate;

-Non-monetary items, which are translated to functional currency on the balance sheet date at NBU

rate on the transaction date.

-Non-monetary items measured at fair value in foreign currency, according to the exchange rate at

the Fair valuation date.

2.5. Reporting period of financial statements 

The reporting period for financial reporting is a calendar year. The intermediate financial 

statements are based on the results of the first quarter, the first half, nine months. 

2.6. Information on the application of new IFRS 

In preparation of financial statements for the reporting period were applied all IFRS, valid at the 

beginning of the reporting period, and also considered new IFRS officially published on the 

website of the Ministry of Finance of Ukraine. 

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company also followed the requirements of national 

legislation and regulations on the organization and maintenance of accounting and financial 

reporting in Ukraine, which do not contradict the requirements of IFRS. 
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The International Accounting Standards Board adopted new and amended standards such as: 

IFRS 16 "Lease agreements" 

On January 13, 2016, the IFRS Board published a new standard for the lease, with the mandatory 

application in the financial statements from January 1, 2019. 

Tenants have a single model of lease accounting and there is no need to determine classification 

of the lease, all leases are reflected in the statement of financial position by means of recognition 

of assets in the form of the right to use and lease liabilities. 

According to IFRS 16, lease obligations are calculated as discounting the value of the future lease 

payments, and the asset is the right to use the leased property, the definition of "operating leases" 

disappears. Further assets ROU are accounted under IAS 16 "property, plant and equipment", IAS 

36 "Impairment of assets", consequently, in the statement of profit and loss, the tenant will display 

depreciation costs, financial rent costs, and possible losses from the impairment of the ROU asset. 

According to IFRS 16 any rent for the lessee is a financing operation. It is expected to increase 

assets and liabilities in the accounting balance. The changes will affect the nature of costs and their 

recognition model. The new standart will affect almost all financial indicators: 

- The ratio of own and borrowed capital,

- Current liquidity ratio,

- Turnover of assets,

- Coverage ratio.

Optional exemption for short-term rent-that is a lease, which expires no more than 12 months. 

Portfolio accounting of lease agreements is allowed if the results of such accounting will not differ 

materially from those that would be obtained in case of application of new requirements to each 

contract separately. Optional exemption for rental of low value objects - that is, the cost of which, 

when they are new, does not exceed the prescribed accounting policy, even if the total value of 

such lease agreements is significant. 

Amendments related to the entry into force of IFRS 16 "Leases": IFRS 3 "Business Consolidation", 

IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment", IAS 1 "Presentation of financial statements", IFRS 1 

"First-time adoption of application of IFRS", IFRS 7 "Financial instruments: Disclosures", IFRS 

9 "Financial instruments", IFRS 13 "fair value Assessment", IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts 

with customers", IAS 2 "Inventory", IAS 7 "Cash flow statement", IAS 21 "Impact of changes in 

foreign exchange rates", IAS 23 "Borrowing costs", IAS 37 "Collateral, contingent liabilities and 

contingent assets", IAS 38 "Intangible assets", IAS 40 "Investment Property". 

Effective date of application of changes 01.01.2019. 

IFRS 16 applied by the Company from the beginning of the mandatory application.  

IFRS (IFRS) 17 Insurance contracts 

On May 18, 2017, the IFRS Council (IASB) published a new standard, which is devoted to 

accounting for insurance contracts, – IFRS (IFRS) 17 Insurance contracts. Start of mandatory 

application in the financial statements from January 01, 2021, or after that date. Early application 

of this standard is allowed. The new standard will provide equal conditions for insurers who report 

under IFRS that will enable users to assess the financial sustainability of insurers. 

IFRS 17 comes to replace IFRS 4, which was introduced in 2004 as a temporary standard. The 

issue of IFRS 4 is that this standard allows companies to keep a record of insurance contracts using 

national accounting standards, resulting in many different approaches to account for insurance 
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contracts. As a result, investors have become difficult to compare and match Company's financial 

performance to each other. 

The new standard is adopted to avoid the "comparison" problem created by IFRS 4. IFRS 17 

stipulates that all insurance contracts will be considered in a consistent manner and are useful for 

both investor and insurance companies. Insurance obligations will be taken into account using the 

current (current values), not the original cost (historical cost) as previously. 

Information is regularly updated, providing more useful information for the financial reporting 

users. 

IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty concerning income tax rules calculation". 

Effective for reporting periods beginning with or after 01.01.2019. 

IFRIC 23 requires that the approach used by the Company is since it predicts the result of the 

uncertainty solution. In particular, the Company must consider how, according to its expectations, 

the tax authorities will conduct tax accounting and interpretation checks. Clarification of IFRIC 

23 requires that the Company proceed from the fact that the tax authorities will verify all the 

amounts that they have the right to verify and familiarize themselves with all related information 

when conducting their review. Companies must consider the likelihood that the tax authorities will 

accept or reject uncertain tax interpretations and the process will be determined by the tax authority 

assessment. Clarification of IFRIC 23 requires from the Company the required revaluation 

(change) of judgment or assessment, in the event of a change in the facts and circumstances upon 

which this judgment or assessment is based, as well as the result of new information affecting 

judgment or evaluation. Any such change shall be considered in the future (prospectively) in 

accordance with IAS 8 "Accounting policy, changes in accounting estimates and errors". In such 

cases, companies should use the standard IAS 10 

"Events after the reporting period" to determine whether there is a change that occurred after the 

reporting period, an adjustment or unregulated event. 

Amendment to IAS 28 "Investments in associates and joint ventures". 

Effective for reporting periods beginning with or after 01.01.2019. 

This standard is used in the accounting of investments in associates. However, it does not apply to 

investments in associates, held by organizations with venture capital or mutual funds, trusts and 

similar business entities, including insurance funds, whose activities are related to investments 

measured at fair value with the reflection of the result of revaluation in profit or loss in accordance 

with IFRS 9 "Financial instruments". An entity evaluates such investments at fair value with a 

reflection of the result of revaluation as profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9. 

Amendment to IFRS 9 "Financial instruments". 

Effective for reporting periods beginning with or after 01.01.2019. 

The amendment allows for the use of the amortized cost to the financial instruments that have an 

option of early repayment, irrespective of the fact that there may be compensation (both positive 

and negative) in case of preterm repayment. 

  

https://zakon.rada.gov.ua/laws/show/929_016
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Amendment to IAS 19 "Employee Benefits". 

Effective for reporting periods beginning with or after 01.01.2019. 

The amendments to IAS 19 "Employee benefits" relate to the accounting procedure for pension 

program companies with defined payment. If a change is made to the program (the program is 

shortened or calculated), IAS 19 requires the Company to reassess the net assets or obligations 

under the established benefit. The amendments require from the Company to use the new 

assumptions used in the conduct of revaluation to determine the value of the services of the current 

period and a net percentage on the balance of the reporting period after the program changes with 

defined payment. 

Amendment to IFRS 3, business combination. 

Effective for reporting periods beginning with or after 01.01.2019. 

If a party to a joint venture agreement (as defined in IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements") obtains control 

of a business that is a joint operation (as defined in IFRS 11), and thus has the rights to assets and 

carried liability for commitments related to this joint operation directly to the acquisition date, this 

agreement is a union of businesses that are implemented in stages. Therefore, the acquirer must 

apply the requirements for the merger of businesses in stages, including the re-assessment of 

participation in joint operations that were earlier, in the manner provided for in paragraph 42. At 

the same time, the acquirer should overestimate all previously existing share of participation in 

joint operations. 

Amendment to IFRS 11 "Joint arrangements". 

Effective for reporting periods beginning after 01.01.2019. 

A party that is party to joint operations but has no co-control can gain joint control over the joint 

operations that are involved in the business, as the term is defined in IFRS 3. In such cases, the 

share of participation in this joint operation was not remeasured. 

Amendment to IAS 12 "Income taxes". 

Effective for reporting periods beginning with or after 01.01.2019. 

The organization must admit the implications of the income tax associated with dividends as they 

are defined in IFRS 9 when it recognizes the obligation to pay dividends. The implications of the 

income tax on dividends relate more directly to past transactions or events that generated profit 

distribution than with distributions in favor of owners. Therefore, organizations should 

acknowledge the consequences of the income tax on dividends in profit or loss, other 

comprehensive income, or in the capital, in accordance with which the organization initially 

recognised such past transactions or events. 

IAS 23 “Borrowing costs”. 

Effective for reporting periods beginning with or after 01.01.2019. 

To the extent that the organization borrows funds into common goals and uses them to obtain a 

qualified asset, the organization must determine the amount of costs on borrowings allowed for 

capitalization, by multiplying the capitalization rate on the amount of expenditures for the given 

asset. The capitalization rate is defined as the weighted value of borrowing costs against all the 

loans of the organization that remain outstanding during the period. However, the organization 

must exclude from this calculation the amount of expenditure on borrowings from loans received 

specifically for the purchase of a qualified asset, until the completion of almost all the works 

necessary for the preparation of this asset to the use by appointment or sale. The amount of 

expenditure on borrowings that the organization 
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Amount of borrowing costs, that the Company capitalizes within the period, shall not exceed the 

amount of expenditure on the borrowings incurred during this period. 

Conceptual framework of financial statements. 

Effective for reporting periods beginning with or after 01.01.2020. 

The concept of the leadership activity in the interests of the owners and the specified information 

arises in connection with this is introduced. The concept of diligence that supports the neutrality 

of information is returned and therefore it describes diligence as "caution in making judgments in 

conditions of uncertainty". The uncertainty of the assessment is a factor that can affect the credible 

provision of information. A report subject is an organization that, on its own initiative, makes or 

is obliged to compose financial statements and is not necessarily a legal entity. Asset-the existing 

economic resource controlled by the organization as a result of past events. Economic resource is 

a right that can bring economic benefits. Obligations 

The existing responsibility of the Organization to transmit economic resources as a result of past 

events. Obligation is a mandatory responsibility, which is not a practical opportunity to avoid in 

the organization. Recognition is the process of fixation for inclusion in the statement of financial 

position or in the report (s) on the financial results of the article that meets the definition of the 

asset, liabilities, capital, income or expenses. Termination of recognition is the exclusion of fully 

or partially recognized assets or liabilities on the financial position report of the Organization. You 

enter two categories of valuation methods: estimate based on historical (initial) value. Historical 

value figures provide information about the objects of accounting, which is formed based on 

historical (initial) amount of the transaction or event. Assessment based on the current (overrated) 

value. The current cost indicators provide monetary information about the accounting objects 

updated to reflect the current conditions at the measurement date. The valuation methods for this 

category may include fair value, value of use, cost of execution, and current cost. The term "report 

(s) on financial results" is introduced to indicate the profit and loss report, together with the ISD

report. The income statement is a major source of information about the Company's financial

results. By default, all income and expenses must be properly classified and included to Statement

of profit and loss.

The Company in the financial statements for the ongoing year as of 31.12.2019, did not apply early 

published IFRS, amendments to them and interpretations. 

3. Basic principles of accounting policies

3.1. Assessments, judgments, and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the management of 

the formation of certain judgments, assessments and assumptions that affect the use of accounting 

policies, as well as the amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses reflected in the 

reporting. 

Management uses a number of estimates and assumptions regarding the representation of assets 

and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities in the preparation of these financial 

statements in accordance with IFRS requirements. 

Assessments and related assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are 

considered to be reasonable under these circumstances, the results of which form the basis for 

judgments on the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not evident from other sources. 

Assumptions and made on their basis preliminary assessments are continuously analyzed for the 

necessity of their changes. Changes in estimates are recognized in the reporting period when these 

estimates were revised and all subsequent periods caused by these changes. 
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The Company assesses and displays assets and liabilities in a way that does not tolerate the existing 

financial risks that potentially threaten financial status for the next reporting periods. 

The assets and liabilities of the Company are initially assessed at the time of purchase or 

origination and subsequently assessed on the balance sheet date for each reporting period in 

accordance with the international Financial reporting standards requirements. 

The main judgments, which were based on the financial statements for 2019, were the following, 

but not exclusively: 

- Formation of accounting policies and its changes – the policy is unchanged from 01.03.2019, 

except for changes made in accordance with the requirements of the current legislation.   

- The assumption of continuity-financial statements of the Company is prepared based on the 

going concern assumption, managerial staff does not have intentions to liquidate a business 

entity or to terminate activity. Management personnel is constantly developing and 

implementing plans for future actions aimed at continuing the continuous operation of the 

enterprise. Assets that can significantly reduce the value of the asset balance are not used to 

generate cash flows. 

- There is no uncertainty in the management staff on the issue of asset impairment. 

- Criteria for recognition of financial reporting elements and termination of recognition. 

- The need to view accounting assessments. 

- Judgments related to receipt of control (buyer's definition, date of control Transition) (IFRS 

3, 10); 

- Identification of assets and liabilities in business acquisition (IFRS 3); 

- Classification of non-current assets (or liquidation groups) as held for sale or held for 

distribution by owners (IFRS 5); 

- Judgment on discontinued activities (IFRS 5); 

- Nature and level of risks arising from financial instruments and on which a business entity 

is exposed during the period and at the end of the reporting period and how the entity 

manages these risks (IFRS 7) 

- Classification of financial Instruments (IFRS 9)-management of the Company applies a 

professional judgment on the timing of financial instruments, which are part of financial 

assets. Professional judgment in this issue is based on the risk assessment of the financial 

instrument, its profitability and dynamics, and other factors; 

- Judgments on jointly controlled transactions and joint ventures (IFRS 11) and judgments on 

control and significant impact (IFRS 12) – As of 31.12.2019, the Company has no control 

over investment objects; 

- The inability to apply certain requirements of IFRS (IAS 1) - when making judgments, the 

Company takes into account the most recent provisions of other bodies that develop and 

approve standards that apply a similar conceptual framework for the development of 

standards, other vocational literature from the accounting and adopted industry practices, to 

the extent that they do not contradict the above-mentioned sources; 

- Offsetting  of financial statements items (IAS 1) - financial assets and liabilities are offset if 

the Company has a legal right to net-off  the amounts recognized in the balance-sheet  and 

intends to either make offsetting or sale the asset and fulfill its obligations simultaneously; 
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- Delimitation of current and non-current assets and liabilities (IAS 1) - classification of assets

and liabilities on maturity terms (current/non-current) is carried out during their initial

recognition depending on the term of existence, use, possession of the Company in

comparison with its operational cycle. The duration of the operating cycle is one calendar

year. In other words, on the date the posting of assets and liabilities are classified by terms:

not current (larger than one year) and current (smaller and equal to one year).

- Signs of impairment of assets (IAS 2, 16, 36, 38, 40);

- Classification of events after the reporting date to corrective and non-corrective (IAS 10) –

After the reporting date there are no events that affect the financial statements of 2019 are

absent;

- Defining relationships and operations between the related parties, signs of "fair value" of

agreements between the linked Parties (IAS 24);

- Assumptions that reflect the best assessment by the management staff of the complex

economic conditions that will exist during the rest of the useful operation of the asset (IAS

36);

- Provisions and conditions of their recognition (IAS 37);

- Contingent assets and liabilities (IAS 37).

3.1.1. Judgments on operations, events or conditions in the absence of specific IFRS 

If there is no IFRS specifically applied to a transaction, other event, or condition, the Company's 

management applies judgments in the development and application of the accounting policy so 

that the information is appropriate for the needs of users to make economic decisions and reliable, 

in the sense that financial reporting: 

- Submits authentically financial condition, financial results and cash flows of the Company;

- Reflects the economic essence of operations, other events or conditions, and not just legal

form;

- Is neutral, that is, free of prejudice;

- is complete in all material respects.

- In the time of judgment, the management of the Company refers to the eligibility of the

following sources and considers them in descending order:

- Requirements in IFRS, which referred about similar and related issues;

- Definition, criteria of recognition and concept of asset valuation, liabilities, income and

expenditures in conceptual basis of financial statements.

In the course of the judgment, the Company's management considers the most recent provisions 

of other bodies that develop and approve standards that apply a similar conceptual basis to develop 

standards, other professional literature in the account and adopted industry practices, to the extent 

that they do not contradict the above-mentioned sources. 

3.1.2. Judgments regarding fair value of the Company assets 

The fair value of actively trading investments in organized financial markets is calculated based 

on the current market value at the time of closing trades at the reporting date. In other cases, the 

fair value assessment is based on judgments on alleged future cash flows, current economic 
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situation, risks inherent in various financial instruments, and other factors taking into account the 

requirements of IFRS 13 "fair value assessment". 

3.1.3. Judgements regarding changes in the fair value of financial assets 

The Company management believes that the accounting estimates and assumptions that relate to 

the valuation of financial instruments, where market quotations are not available, are a key source 

of uncertainty assessments, because: 

a) They are highly likely to undergo changes over time, as estimates are based on the assumptions 

of the leadership on the interest rates, volatility, changes in foreign exchange rates, the 

creditworthiness of counterparties, the valuation adjustments, and the specific features of the 

transactions; and 

b) The impact of changes in estimates on assets reflected in the statement of financial position, 

and on income (expense) may be significant. The use of various marketing assumptions and/or 

valuation techniques may also have a significant impact on the perceived fair value. 

If the management of the Company used other assumptions about the interest rates, volatility, 

currency exchange rates, counterparty credit rating, offer date and valuation adjustments, greater 

or less change in assessing the value of financial instruments in the absence of market quotations 

would have a significant impact on the net profit and loss recognised in the financial statements. 

The use of various marketing assumptions and/or valuation techniques may also have a significant 

impact on the perceived fair value. 

 

3.1.4. Judgements on expected deadlines for financial instruments retention 

The Company's management applies professional judgment on the timing of financial instruments 

that are part of financial assets. Professional judgment in this issue is based on the risk assessment 

of the financial instrument, its profitability and dynamics, and other factors. However, there are 

uncertainties that can relate to the suspension of securities turnover that is not controlled by the 

society's leadership factor and can significantly affect the assessment of financial instruments. 

 

3.1.5. Judgements on identifying impairment signs of assets 

At each reporting date, the Company analyzes financial assets for the presence of signs of 

impairment. 

The Company considers its portfolio of loans and receivables, as well as defines losses for 

impairment and hopeless indebtedness on a quarterly basis. In determining the amount of 

impairment, the Company makes estimates and assumptions about the probable reduction of 

expected future cash flows on the loan portfolio and receivables, before the reduction can be 

determined in the loan pool. 

All existing signs of problems with credit and payment status of borrowers and potential changes 

in the economic environment at the local level are analyzed. Analyzes are performed for the entire 

pool of credits as at a certain time, due to the fact that the Company does not have a significant 

concentration of credit risk according to individual positions in the portfolio of micro loans. The 

management uses historical data on the realised loss of assets with similar risk characteristics in 

making these estimates and analysis, given the professional opinion. The amount of impairment is 

defined as the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the expected reimbursement 

at the end of each quarterly quarter separately by the respective group of loans at each period of 

the outstanding credit. 
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The Company uses the simplified approach (5.5.15 IFRS 9) to calculate the allowance for damages 

in the amount equal to expected credit losses, according to the developed and approved regulations 

on the procedure for the formation and use of reserves for the Company's financial assets according 

to the expected losses model in accordance with IFRS 9 "Financial instruments". 

The forecast information on macro indicators of the Company was not carried out in connection 

with granting credits for short term when macro indices have no influence on repayment of such 

credits. 

 

3.1.6. Using discount Rates 

The discount rate is the interest rate used to convert future revenue streams into a single value of 

the present (current) value, which is the basis for determining the market value of business. 

From an economic perspective, as the discount rate is the minimum acceptable for a investor, the 

rate of income on the invested capital in the corresponding risk level of similar investment objects, 

or-the rate of income by alternative investment options with the risk level matching at the 

assessment date. 

The discount rate depends on the settlement currency and additionally should be determined taking 

into account three factors: 

a) Value of money in time; 

b) Cost of sources, which are attracted for the financing of the investment project, which require 

different levels of compensation. 

(c) risk factor or measure of probability of future income. 

Information on discount rate is taken according to the analysis of own contractual interest rates on 

banking borrowings for the financial year, or potential rates based on the negotiations with banks. 

And in the absence of actual and potential internal indicators of borrowing-from the weighted rates 

of similar loans/deposits. Obtained from the official website of the National Bank of Ukraine. 

 

3.2. Basis (or basis) of estimates applied in financial statements preparation 

These financial statements are prepared on the basis of historical costs, except for estimates of the 

fair value of certain financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 9, "Financial instruments", 

using the valuation methods of financial instruments, IFRSs 13 "fair value MEASUREMENT" 

and IAS 28 "Investments in Associates" – on the method of participation in equity of other 

enterprises. Such valuation methods include the use of stock quotations or data on the current 

market value of another similar instrument, the analysis of discounted cash flows or other models 

of determining fair value 

3.2.1. Assessment methods used for the fair value formulation 

The Company carries out exceptionally continuous estimates of the fair value of assets and 

liabilities, i.e. estimates required IFRS 9 and IFRS 13 in the statement of financial position at the 

end of each reporting period. 
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Classes of assets 

and liabilities 

assessed at fair 

value 

 

Valuation Techniques 

Valuation 

method 

(market, 

profitable, 

cost) 

 

Imprint 

Cash and 

equivalents 

The initial and subsequent evaluation of cash and their 

equivalents is carried out at fair value equal to their 

nominal value 

Market Official NBU exchange 

rates 

Deposits 

(excluding 

deposits to 

question) 

The initial estimation of the deposit is at its fair value, 

which is usually equal to its nominal value. Further 

valuation of deposits in national currency is carried out at 

fair value of expected cash flows 

The profitable 

(discounting 

cash flow) 

Rates for deposits, 

effective rates under 

deposit agreements 

Debt securities The initial assessment of debt securities as financial 

assets is carried out at fair value, which is usually equal 

to the price of the transaction in which the asset was 

received. The subsequent assessment of debt securities is 

at fair value. 

Market, 

profitable 

Official stock exchange 

rates for trading 

organizers at the date of 

assessment, similar debt 

securities quotes, 

discounted cash flows 

Equity instruments Initial assessment of capital instruments is at fair value, 

which is usually equal to the transaction price in which 

the asset was received. The subsequent assessment of 

equity instruments is at fair value at the measurement 

date. 

Market, cost Official stock exchange 

rates of tenders at the 

date of assessment, in 

the absence of a defined 

exchange rate on the 

date of assessment, 

using the last carrying 

amount cost, the price 

of closing the Exchange 

trading day 

Accounts 

receivable 

The initial and subsequent evaluation of receivables is 

carried out at fair value equal to the repayment value, i.e. 

the amount of expected contractual cash flows at the 

measurement date. 

Doha Contract conditions, 

probability of 

repayment, expected 

cash flows 

Current liabilities Initial and subsequent evaluation of current liabilities is 

carried out at the cost of repayment 
Cost Contract conditions, 

probability of 

repayment, expected 

output cash flows 

 

3.3. About the accounting policies of the Company 

Company accounting policies - specific principles, principles, arrangements, rules and practices 

applied by the entity in the preparation and presentation of financial statements. IFRS provides 

accounting policies which, by conclusion, can form such financial statements, which will contain 

appropriate and reliable information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which 

they apply. 

Accounting and drafting of financial reports are carried out in compliance with the principles of 

diligence, full illumination, consistency, continuity, calculation and compliance of income and 

expenses, the presumption of the entity over the form, periodicity. 

The Company's accounting policy was developed in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 

"Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors" and approved by the order of 

Director No. 1 of 01.03.2019 "On organization of Accounting and Accounting policy". Before  

preparation of  annual financial statements, the Company carried out annual inventory of assets 

and liabilities that are accounted on the balance-sheet, according to director’s order № 3 BO from 

31.12.2019 The inventory results are reflected in the Company’s balance sheet as of 31.12.2019. 
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3.4. Information on changes in accounting policies 

The Company chooses and applies its accounting policies consistently for such operations, other 

events or conditions, unless IFRS specifically requires or permits the identification of the 

categories of articles for which other policies may be relevant. 

3.5. The form and name of financial reports 

The list and names of financial reporting forms meet the requirements set by the NAS 1 «General 

requirements to financial statements». 

3.6. Methods of submitting information in financial reports 

According to the NAS for 1 "General financial reporting requirements", the report on 

comprehensive income provides for the representation of the costs recognized in profit or loss, 

according to the classification based on the "cost function" method or the "cost of sales", whereby 

costs are classified according to their functions as part of the cost or, for example, expenses for 

sales or administrative activities. 

The presentation of cash flows from operating activities in the statement of cash flows is carried 

out using a direct method, according to which the information about the main classes of cash 

inflows or cash payments is disclosed. Information on the main types of cash income and cash 

payments is formed on the basis of accounts of the Company. 

3.7. Criteria for recognition financial statements elements 

Recognition is the process of inclusion in the statement of financial position or income statement, 

articles that meet the definition of the item and the recognition criteria. 

Assets are recognized as being controlled by the Company as a result of past events, the use of 

which is expected to increase economic requirements. The classification of assets (non-

current/current) and liabilities in terms of maturity (long-term/current) is carried out during their 

initial recognition depending on the term of existence, use, possession of the Company in 

comparison with their operational cycle. The duration of the operating cycle is one calendar year. 

Asset is recognized as negotiable if: 

✓ It is assumed to be implemented or intended for sale or use within the normal operating 

cycle; 

✓ The asset is intended for sale (trade) or it is assumed to be implemented within twelve 

months after the end of the reporting period; 

✓ The asset is a monetary means, except for cases of availability of restrictions on its 

exchange or use in order to repay the liabilities within twelve months after the end of the 

reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Current receivables for products, goods, works, services are recognised as asset at the same time 

as recognition of income from, sales of products, goods, works and services and are estimated at 

fair value of compensation at the date of recognition. 

Liabilities - debts of the Company arising from past events, the settlement of which will lead to 

outflow resources, which contain economic benefits. 

The obligation is recognised as short-term (current) if it meets one of the following criteria: 

✓ It is assumed that the obligation will be repaid during the normal operating cycle; 

✓ The obligation is primarily for sale; 

✓ The obligation shall be repaid within 12 months after the balance date. 
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The Company has no unconditional right to postpone the repayment of the obligation at least 12 

months after the date of balance. 

Commitments that do not correspond to any of the listed criteria are deemed long term. 

Part of the long-term obligation to be repaid within twelve months from the last day of each 

calendar month, shall be transferred to the current liabilities on the same date. Accounting for long-

term and current liabilities is carried out with division on trade, financial and other liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current/long-term assets and liabilities. 

To determine the date of recognition or repayment of assets and liabilities use contracts, the rules 

of securities issue (on bonds, etc.) and the current legislation. 

The Company established a limit of significance for: 

✓ Separate objects of accounting of assets, liabilities, equity – 1% Balance currency; 

✓ Revenues and expenditures – 1% of net profit (loss). 

The Company does not count the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and expenses, unless it 

is required to comply with any IFRS. 

The Company leaves unchanged the presentation and classification of articles in the financial 

statements from the period to the period. If there are changes in the presentation or classification 

of the articles in the financial statements, the Company will make a reclassification of comparative 

amounts, except when it is not possible to disclose the information on this case. 

Capital -the share, that remains in the Company's assets after deduction all its obligations. 

Income – gains of economic benefit during the reporting period, in the form of inflow (or increase) 

of assets or reduction of liabilities, leading to increased capital not associated with deposits owners. 

Expenditures -reduction of economic benefits during the reporting period, which occurs in the 

form of outflow assets or increase in liabilities leading to a capital reduction not related to its 

division between the owners (participants). 

Income and expense are recognised using the accrual method. 

The following items are subject to recognition in the financial statements: 

✓ Meet the definition of one of the elements; 

✓ Meet the recognition criteria. 

Criteria of recognition: 

✓ There is a possibility of obtaining or outflow the future economic benefits associated with 

the object, which corresponds to the element definition; 

✓ The object has a cost or estimate, which can be reliably measured. 

All assets that are owned by the Company are controlled and authentically appreciated. Assets and 

liabilities are estimated to exclude the possibility of transferring existing financial risks to future 

reporting periods. 

3.8. Foreign currency transactions 

Foreign currency transactions, i.e. agreements denominated in other currencies than in Ukrainian 

hryvnia (UAH) are evaluated at the exchange rate established by the National Bank of Ukraine in 

effect on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency 

transferred at the exchange rate at the date of the financial statements. Non-monetary assets 

denominated in foreign currency are measured at cost, at the rate on the date of initial recognition. 
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Exchange income and losses are recorded at the exchange rate acting on the date of the transaction. 

Net profit or loss from currency fluctuations arising from accounts receivable, accounts payable, 

and foreign currency are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in 

which they arise. 

3.9. Fixed assets and intangible assets 

The fixed assets acquired by the Company are given for its historical at cost minus accumulated 

depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

The fixed asset is recognized as an asset, if the expected period of useful use (operation) more than 

a year and the cost is equal to or more than 6.000 UAH. 

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated with the use of rectilinear method. 

The term of useful equipment in groups: 

The term of useful use 

Intangible assets      2-4 years 

Machinery and equipment     2-5 years 

Tools, devices, and equipment (furniture)   4 years 

Other fixed Assets      12 years 

The cost of fixed assets that do not meet the criteria for the recognition of assets, to recognize the 

cost of commissioning in the first month of their use in the amount of 100% of their value. 

Expenses carried out for maintenance of fixed assets in working condition and obtaining of the 

initially defined amount of future economic benefits from their use, are recognized expenses of 

the period. Replacement and improvement that can prolong the useful life or significantly improve 

the condition of the asset are capitalised. 

Intangible assets include acquired by the Company the software used in the provision of services 

and management. The costs of purchasing intangible assets are depreciated on a straightforward 

basis over the expected period of their useful use, which is 2 years. 

Trademarks used by economic activities in the provision of financial services are amortizing by 

straight line method. The Terms of useful trademarks are 10 years. 

3.10. Impairment of assets and intangible assets 

At each reporting date, the Company evaluates whether there is any indication that the usefulness 

of the asset may decrease. 

The Company decreases the carrying amount of the asset to its refundable refund if the amount of 

the expected reimbursement of an asset is less than its carrying value. This decrease is immediately 

recognised in profits or loss if the asset is not accounted for at the overvalued value under IAS 16. 

The impairment loss recognised for the asset (excluding Goodwill) in the previous periods, the 

Company will only change if the previous estimates applied to determine the recoverable amount. 

After the impairment loss is recognised, depreciation of the fixed assets is corrected in future 

periods in order to distribute the revised carrying amount of the current asset on systematic basis 

during the period of useful use. 

3.11. Investment property 

In the organization of investment property accounting the Company is governed by the 

requirements of IAS 40 "Investment property". 
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Initial valuation of investment property is carried out by at cost. The cost of the transaction is 

included in the initial cost. Cost of Purchased investment property includes the price of its 

acquisition and any costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition. Directly attributed costs 

include, for example, rewards for the provision of professional legal services, taxes related to the 

transfer of ownership, and other costs of the transaction. The assessment shall be recognised at fair 

value at the measurement date. Profit or loss from changes in the fair value of investment property 

is recognised in profit or loss. Such assets are not depreciated. 

Fair value of investment property is usually determined with the involvement of Independent 

Appraiser. The frequency of view of fair value is due to significant for accounting fluctuations in 

the market of similar real estate. The fair value of unfinished construction equals the cost of the 

completed object minus the costs of completion of construction. 

If we cannot estimate the fair value, the Company chooses to assess the Investment property 

valuation model for at cost in accordance with IAS 16 and applies this approach to all investment 

property, and the reasons from which the fair value is not used are disclosed. 

Investment property on the balance sheet as of 31.12.2019 has not been accounted for. 

3.12. Inventory 

Accounting and presentation in financial statements performed in accordance with IAS 2 

"Inventory. 

Stocks of material valuables are the assets that are retained by the Company for consumption in 

the process of performing activities (provision of services), as well as for administrative 

(management) needs. 

Stocks of inventory items consist of: 

- Economic materials (material values needed to ensure the Company's activities and 

services, as well as for repair and maintenance of other non-current assets); 

- Low-cost and worn-out objects – items used by the Company for no more than one year 

(regardless of their value). 

In accounting material values are calculated on the corresponding accounts of accounting at initial 

cost, taking into account the cost of transportation from the supplier, taxes, fees and other 

mandatory payments. The initial value of the stocks does not change, except if at the date of 

balance their price decreased or they were spoiled, are outdated, or otherwise lost initially to the 

expected economic benefit. Stocks are displayed with the smallest of two assessments: at the initial 

cost or net value of sales. The FIFO method – "First receipt – the first expenditure", is used when 

the write-off and other stocks are deducted. 

3.13. Recognition and measurement of financial instruments 

The Company recognizes the financial asset or financial liabilities in the balance sheet when and 

when it becomes a party to the contractual clauses for financial instruments. Transactions for the 

purchase or sale of financial instruments are recognized using the settlement date. Any profit or 

loss at the time of the initial evaluation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the 

current period or displayed directly in equity if the financial instrument is the result of a capital 

transaction. 

In the initial recognition of a financial asset or financial obligation, the Company evaluates them 

at fair value plus operating costs that directly relate to the purchase or issuance of a financial asset 

or financial liability. 
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Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are in circulation in an active market is 

based on quotations of active markets or dealers ' quotations. For all other financial instruments, 

the Company defines fair value using valuation methods. Evaluation methods include a model for 

assessing the net of the current value and discounted cash flows, comparisons with similar tools, 

which are known to market quotations, as well as other valuation models. The assumptions and 

data used for the assessment include non-risk and base interest rates, credit spreads and other 

premiums used to assess the discounting rate of the shares and bonds rates, currency rates, stock 

indices, and expected price fluctuations and their collation. Assessment methods are aimed at 

determining fair value, reflecting the cost of the financial instrument as at the reporting date, which 

would be determined by independent market participants. The Company evaluates fair values of 

financial instruments using the next hierarchy of fair value estimates, taking into account the 

substantial data used in the formation of these assessments. 

Level 1: quotations in the active market in relation to identical financial instruments. 

Level 2: methods of valuation based on market data, available directly (i.e. quotations) or indirectly 

(i.e. data derived from quotations). This category includes tools that are assessed using: market 

quotations on active markets for similar instruments, market quotations for identical or similar 

instruments in the markets, not examined as active, or other methods of evaluation, any data used 

directly or indirectly based on publicly available market data. 

The Company recognizes the following categories of financial instruments: 

✓ A financial asset that is evaluated at fair value (financial assets held for sale; accounts 

receivable), with recognition of the revaluation result in the statement of profit or loss; 

✓ A financial asset that is evaluated at amortized cost (financial assets held to maturity); 

✓ Financial liabilities assessed at fair value (accounts payable); 

✓ Financial liabilities, estimated at amortized cost (credits, loans). 

3.14. Accounts receivable 

Receivables are the financial asset that constitutes the contract right to obtain cash or other 

financial asset from another business entity. Accounts receivable are recognised in the statement 

of financial position only when the Company becomes a party to the contractual relationship with 

respect to this instrument. As part of accounts receivable, the Company reflects the following 

assets: 

- Receivables from the main activity; 

- Receivables on loans issued; 

- Other accounts receivable. 

For the purposes of financial statements, receivables are classified as current (receipt is expected 

during the current year or operating cycle) or as long-term (receivables that cannot be classified as 

current). After initial recognition the further assessment of receivables is carried out on the 

amortised at cost using the effective interest method. 

Loans granted to individuals. 

During initial recognition the financial asset is classified at amortised cost, i.e. classified as an 

asset, which is held within the framework of the business model, the purpose of which is to 

maintain assets to obtain the stipulated by the contract of cash flows and its contractual terms 

provide arising in the prescribed terms of cash flows, which represent the payment of the 

exceptionally principal and interest (SPPI) on the outstanding portion 

Since the recognition of a financial asset on the balance, the Company evaluates credit losses with 

the help of a three-stage model based on the credit risk change. According to IAS 9 "financial 
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instruments", the impairment value is estimated in the amount of expected credit losses as a result 

of the events default by the financial instrument, which is possible within 12 months after the 

reporting date or expected credit losses as a result of all possible events default for financial 

instruments throughout the expected term of its validity. 

The reserve of doubtful debts is created using the method of classification of debtors on the terms 

on which the loan was issued (Periodization of receivables). The Company conducts credit debt 

assessment for accrual of reserves. The payment discipline is taken into account when repaying 

the principal amount of debt and interest on the loan. That is, in the classification of the degree of 

risk and attribution to the appropriate group when calculating the allowance is accepted only one 

criterion-repayment of debt borrowers. The size of the reserves is determined by the total credit 

indebtedness using risk coefficients and quarterly adjusted. Risk factors are determined by the use 

of information on the repayment of previous reporting periods and in view of the factors in the 

presence of objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect receivables. A method 

of periodization of accounts receivable requires the analysis of receivables balances at the end of 

the reporting period, regarding accounting of its outstanding. The analysis of each of the 

receivables groups applies a certain percentage/credit risk factor based on the experience of the 

previous periods of debt repayment depending on the number of days of the delay. This method 

takes into account the rest of the reserve of doubtful debts on the beginning of the reporting period 

and hopeless receivables, written off/used at the expense of reserve during the reporting period. 

Receivables are displayed in the statement of financial position at the net implementing value, with 

a drawback of the provision of doubtful debts 

3.15. Other accounts receivable 

Other receivables are other non-derivative financial assets. Receivables are recognised in the event 

of a right to receive the payment under the contract or other legal law. If the Company has an 

objective evidence that receivables are not reimbursed, the Company creates the appropriate 

provision for impairment and reduces the net carrying amount of receivables to the cost of their 

reimbursement. The depreciation is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income. The 

Company collects objective evidences regarding impairment of accounts receivable using the same 

methods and estimates as in the case of impairment of financial assets are accounted at amortised 

cost. The Company analyzes the debtor's debt for impairment quarterly separately for each 

counterparty. Depending on the conditions, terms and amounts of funds received in the course of 

repayment of these amounts, the Company creates a provision for impairment for each debtor. No 

advances received, no advances issued, no taxes, fees and mandatory payments are not financial 

assets and financial liabilities. These amounts are recognized for originally received (paid) sums. 

3.16. Accounting policies regarding non-current assets held for sale 

The Company classifies not the current asset as held for sale if its carrying amount value will be 

mainly reimbursed by the sale transaction instead of the current use. 

No current assets held for sale are evaluated and are displayed in the accounting for the smallest 

of the two values: Balance or fair value with less costs for transactions related to the sale. Such 

assets are not depreciated. 

The impairment loss on the original or subsequent written off of the asset to the fair value minus 

the sales costs is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

3.17. Cash and equivalents 

Cash consists of cash at the ticket office, funds on current accounts. Cash equivalents are 

recognized as short-term high-rise investments that are freely converted into cash amounts with 

insignificant risk of change in value. As the classification characteristics of cash equivalents, the 

Company applies the period of their conversion, not exceeding three months. 
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The initial assessment of cash and their equivalents is carried out at fair value that equal to their 

nominal value. 

Initial evaluation of cash and equivalents in foreign currency and bank accounts. 

Metals are carried out in functional currency according to official courses of the National Bank of 

Ukraine. 

The subsequent assessment of cash and equivalents is carried out at fair value, which equals their 

nominal value at the measurement date. 

Subsequent evaluation of cash and their equivalents in foreign currency and bank metals are 

carried out in functional currency according to official courses of the National Bank of Ukraine. 

3.18. Statement of cash flows (by direct method) 

The Company prepares a statement of cash flows under IAS 7 "Cash flow statement" according to 

the direct method, using the statement of cash flows (by direct method), approved by the Order of 

MFP 73 of 07.02.2013. 

3.19. Reserves 

The conceptual basis stipulates that the enterprise and its equity can create normative reserves. 

Creation of reserves at the expense of retained earnings profit involves reduction of the last and 

creation of the appropriate types of reserves in the amount defined by the authorized bodies of the 

enterprise. Such regulatory reserve is reserve capital, which was accrued by the Company in the 

amount of 5% of annual profit. 

The Company forms the reserve for the Company's financial assets by the model of expected losses 

according to the regulations on the procedure of forming and using reserves for the Company's 

financial assets according to the expected losses model in accordance with IFRS 9 "Financial 

Instruments" 

The Company uses the business model, the purpose of which is to maintain the assets for the 

obtaining of contractual cash flows by obtaining contractual payments during the term of the tool, 

which are purely payments of the principal amount and interest to the outstanding share of the 

principal amount, and are accounted for at amortised cost. 

3.20. Ensuring 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a current debt (legal or constructive) due to the 

past event, there is a possibility (that is, more possible than impossible), that repayment of the 

obligation will require the disposal of resources which embody economic benefits, and can be 

reliably assessed the amount of the obligation. 

The Company creates a "reserve of future costs and payments" to pay for vacations that were not 

used in the current period (future costs and payments for the vacations), are recognised during 

provision by service staff who increase their rights for future vacation compensation and are 

determined by the accounting assessment of the resources required for the compensation. The 

amount of reserves for the disbursement of vacations is determined by settlement. 

The Company is guided by IAS 19 "Employee benefits" when forming the provision of payment 

for the vacations. 

3.21. Equity 

Statutory capital 

The statutory capital includes membership contributions. The statutory capital is reflected on the 

original value of participants ' contributions. The amount exceeding the fair value of funds received 
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over the nominal value of the participant's share is displayed as an emission income. The statutory 

capital has been formed (registered and paid) in full. State share in authorized capital is absent. 

Dividends 

The possibility of the Company to inform and pay dividends falls under regulation of current 

legislation of Ukraine. 

Dividends are reflected in the financial statements as the use of retained earnings profits as their 

announcement. During 2019, the Company had not reported and paid dividends. 

Additional capital is the amount of contributions of participants over the registered part. 

The reserve capital is formed at the expense of retained earnings profit by decision of the general 

meeting of the Company participants. 

Retained earnings (accumulated loss) are net gains that are not distributed between participants. 

3.22. Income and expenses 

Revenue recognition. 

Revenues are determined if there is a high probability that the Company will receive economic 

gains, and the revenues may be more likely to be determined. 

Revenues are recognised in the accrual method. Income from service is displayed at the moment 

of origination regardless of the date of receipt of funds. The income from services rendered is 

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which these services were 

provided. 

The Company receives the main income from financial activity in the form of interest accrued on 

the amount of the provided financial credit under the terms of the agreement and other income in 

the form of a penalty accrued on the delay return of provided financial credit, and penalties under 

the loan agreement. 

Earnings are measured at the fair value of the remuneration received from that subject to obtaining, 

excluding discounts, bonuses and sales taxes. 

Recognition of expenses. 

The Company bears the costs in the process of operating activities, as well as other expenses that 

are not related to the operating activities. The costs are included in the income statement if there 

is a decrease in future economic benefits associated with a decrease in the asset or an increase in 

the liabilities that can be reliably recognised. The costs are determined in the statement of financial 

results based on the direct comparison between the incurred costs and income on specific revenues. 

If the emergence of economic benefits is expected within a few accounting periods and the 

relationship with the income can be traced only in whole or indirectly, the costs in the statement 

of financial results are determined based on the rational distribution method. Consumption is 

determined in a statement of financial results immediately if the costs do not create big future 

economic benefits, or when the future economic benefits do not meet or cease to meet the 

requirements of recognition as an asset in balance. 

3.23. The following costs 

The following costs are capitalised only if they increase the future economic benefits associated 

with the subject to which the costs relate. All other expenses, including the costs of created by the 

Company of goodwill and brands, are admitted as part of profit or loss as they arise. 
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3.24. Employee Benefits 

The Company recognizes employees ' short-term payments as expenses and as liabilities after 

deduction any amount already paid. The Company recognizes the expected cost of short-term 

employee payments for lack of collateral – during the provision of services by employees who 

increase their rights for future of vacation payments. 

Company monthly forms a reserve of holidays, using a coefficient of 0.068 calculated by the 

formula: 

C Reserve = Scheduled annual amount of vacation/planned annual Payroll Fund 

The calculation of this reserve is based on the rules of the Company's accounting policies. 

The size of the generated reserve payment provision is subject to inventory at year end. 

The amount of deductions to the reserve, including social insurance deductions from these amounts 

is calculated based on the number of days actually of unused by vacation employees and their 

average daily earnings at the time of such calculation. Other objective factors that influence the 

calculation of this indicator may also be taken into account. If necessary, corrective wiring is done 

in accounting according to the inventory data of the holiday allowance. 

At the request of IAS 19, the financial statements notes provide the following information. The 

Company applies hourly labor remuneration for salaries according to the approved staffing 

schedule. 

As of 31.12.2019, there are no current liabilities for payroll. There are no overdue debts for salary 

payment as of 31.12.2019. 

3.25. Income tax 

Income taxes are reflected in the financial statements in accordance with the legislation that is 

valid at the end of the reporting period. Income tax expense includes current tax and deferred tax 

and are recognised in profit or loss for the year, except in cases where they relate to transactions 

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in the same or different period. 

The current tax is the amount that is expected to be paid or refunded by the tax authorities regarding 

the taxable profit or losses of the current or previous periods. If financial statements approved by 

prior to filing relevant tax returns, taxable earnings or tax damage are determined by the settlement 

method. Other taxes other than on income are recognised in administrative and other operating 

expenses. 

Deferred tax is reflected in respect of temporary differences of assets arising between the carrying 

amount of assets and liabilities defined for the purposes of their mapping in the financial statements 

and their tax base. Deferred tax is not recognised in respect of the following temporary differences: 

differences related to the reflection in the financial statements of goodwill and those that do not 

reduce the tax base; The difference relating to the assets or liabilities, the fact of initial recognition 

that does not affect either accounting or taxable profit. 

3.26. Losses from non-current assets held for sale 

The accounting of assets held for sale by the Company defines in accordance with IFRS 5 "non-

current assets held for sale and discontinued activities". The standard requires that assets that meet 

the criteria to classify them as held for sale, evaluated at a lower value of the carrying amount or 

fair value of less costs of sale-and that the depreciation of these assets was terminated, the assets 

that meet the criteria allowing to classify them as held for sale are submitted separately in the 

statement of financial position, and the results of the discontinued activity-in the statement of 

comprehensive income. 
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As of 31.12.2019, the Company does not have any non-current assets held for sale. 

3.27. Operating taxes 

Accrual, payment and accounting of taxes shall be carried out in accordance with the tax code of 

Ukraine. Under tax means legally established mandatory contribution to the budget of the 

appropriate level or State pension fund, carried out by payers in the manner and under the 

conditions determined by the tax legislation, to form centralized financial resources. 

According to Ukrainian tax legislation, there are two sources of payment of taxes to the budget: 

- Income

- expenses

Such indirect taxes as value added tax, excise duty are paid by income. 

Due to expenses, other taxes and fees are paid. 

These taxes are included in the operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss. 

3.28. Error correction 

The submission and promulgation of the refined financial statements are made in the same manner 

as the financial statements which are specified. 

Since certain clarifying forms of financial reporting are absent, clarification of financial statements 

is performed by drafting and submitting the standard forms included in Annex No. 1 with the 

correct indicators. 

The procedure for correcting errors depends primarily on the period in which they are admitted: 

in the current or previous one. Since the reporting period for financial reporting is a calendar year: 

- The errors of the previous period are those that are carried out in previous calendar years;

- The errors of the current period include errors that were made and found in the current

calendar year  or identified after the end of the reporting year, but before the approval of

financial statements.

When correcting errors of the current period, it is necessary to correct records of the corresponding 

accounting accounts in the month of the reporting period in which the inaccuracy is revealed. 

In case of correction of errors, made and identified in the current financial year, retained earnings 

(not covered losses) are not corrected (account 44 not applied). 

We correct the error or method of "red reversal", or the way of additional accounting records. At 

the same time we make an accounting note, which contains the content of mistakes, the amount 

and correspondence of accounts, through which changes are made. 

When correcting mistakes made in previous periods, the mistake is corrected by adjusting the 

balance of retained earnings. 

The fact of the error correction should be noted in notes to the current financial statements. They 

need to display the following information: 

- Content and amount of error;

- Articles of financial statements of the previous periods, are listed for re-submission of

comparative information;

- Fact or inappropriate re-publication of the corrected financial statements.
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The rules for correcting errors in accounting regulations are defined by IAS 8 "Accounting 

policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors". 

3.29. Financial Risk Management 

Risk-a threat of unpredictable material losses associated with occasional changes of economic 

activity, adverse circumstances, measured frequency, probability of occurrence of different loss 

levels, exceeding the amount of profit that is expected. 

Financial risk is a specific economic category that arises in the process of economic activities and 

reflects the probability of decrease in profits, loss of capital, bankruptcy in the conditions of the 

uncertainty of financial, industrial and economic factors. 

The Company carries out complex risk management. Risk management functions as managerial 

personnel. 

The Company's financial risk management is a system of methods and instruments, which are 

implemented through identification, analysis of financial risks, assessment of their probable at for 

the enterprise, development and implementation of measures to neutralizing their negative impact. 

The main objectives of financial risk management are to determine risk limits and to oversee that 

these limits are not exceeded. 

The main risks associated with the Company's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk 

and currency risk. 

The maximum amount of credit risk relating to financial assets is the carrying amount value of the 

financial assets that are reflected in the balance sheet articles. The Company carries out regular 

monitoring of accounts receivable under loan agreements, as well as other receivables from the 

point of view of its repayment. 

Liquidity risk is the risk of insolvency the Company to fulfill its payment obligations within the 

prescribed period under the usual or unpredictable circumstances. The main risk to which the 

Company is being exposed is the risk associated with the timeliness of repayment of loans. 

The Company controls liquidity through planning of current liquidity. 

The Company analyzes the payment terms related to receivables and other financial assets, as well 

as forecasted cash flows from operating activities. 

The market risk is a risk of fluctuations in the fair value of future cash flows of financial 

instruments as a result of changes in market parameters, including foreign exchange rates. 

According to IFRS 9, the Company forms reserves to cover expected credit losses. In accordance 

with IFRS 9, impairment assessment is based on a model of expected credit losses (hereinafter 

referred to as the "impairment model"). The model of evaluation of expected credit losses is 

applied to the following financial instruments not evaluated at fair value through profit or loss: 

- Bank accounts balances;

- Loans and advances to customers.

- Other financial assets.

- Commitments to provide loans.

The Company considers that it is subjected to risks associated with changes in interest rates and 

market risk. 
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4. Disclosures in the financial statement’s items  

Analysis of Financial Reporting articles 

Fair value is the amount by which it is possible to exchange an asset or repay a liability in 

transactions between knowledgeable, interested, and independent parties. 

Significance, omission, or misstatement of financial statement items are significant if they can 

(alone or collectively) influence the economic decisions that users make based on the financial 

statements. Significance depends on the size and nature of the omission or misstatement that is 

evaluated under specific circumstances. The decisive can be either the size or nature of the items, 

and the combination of items. 

Assets, liabilities and equity are elements that are directly related to the assessment of the financial 

position. 

Assets-resources controlled by the Company as a result of past events, which are expected to arrive 

future economic benefits to the company. 

Obligation - the present debt of the Company that arises from the events and repayment of which, 

at the expectation, will cause the disposal of resources from the Company, which embody the 

future economic benefits. 

Equity is the residual share in the assets of the enterprise after deduction all its obligations. 

The accounting policy in the company is regulated by the current legislation of Ukraine, IFRS and 

the order in the Company "An accounting policy and organization of accounting" of 01.03.2019, 

No1/PV. 

To the form No. 1 Balance sheet (statement of financial position)", during the year, the adjustments 

and changes were not made. 

Information is presented in the context of current assets. 

Assessment of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities is made at fair value. 

The balance sheet and liabilities on current (current) and long-term (non-current) in accordance 

with IAS 1 "Presentation of financial statements" has been carried out for the presentation. The 

current assets and liabilities include the amounts expected to be reimbursed or repaid within 12 

months from the balance sheet date. 

4.1 Balance sheet Items (Statement of financial position) 

4.1.1. Non-current assets 

As of 31.12.2019, non-current assets on the company's balance are comprised of intangible assets, 

fixed assets and long-term financial investments. 

4.1.2. Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are accounted for and recognized in the financial statements according to IAS 38 

"intangible assets". 

The controlled by the non-monetary assets that are not of material form can be identified separately 

from the enterprise and used by the enterprise for a period of more than 1 year (or operating cycle) 

for the production of financial services, for administrative purposes or for renting to other persons. 
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Intangible assets as at 31 December 2019 may be represented as follows: 

 

Acquired software 

  

January 01, 2019  

Cost - 

Accumulated amortization - 

Net book value - 

Year ended December 31, 2019  

Additions 3,952 

Amortisation charges (164) 

December 31, 2019  

Cost 3,952 

Accumulated amortization (164) 

Net book value 3,788 

 

4.1.3. Fixed assets  

The company's fixed assets are taken into account under IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment" 

Fixed assets are tangible objects that: 

- held for use in the provision of financial services or for administrative purposes; 

- use, on the expectation, for more than one year and cost more than 6000 UAH. 

The fixed assets of the company are counted by objects. 

Depreciation of fixed assets of the company is charged by a straight-line method using the terms 

of useful object of fixed assets. 

The fixed assets as of December 31, 2019 are represented in the following groups: 

Machinery 

and 

equipment 

Instruments, 

devices and 

tools 

Lease 

property 

improvements Total 

 
   

 

January 1, 2019    
 

Cost - - - - 

Accumulated depreciation - - - - 

Net book value - - - - 

Year ended December 31, 2019    
 

Additions 493 150 104 747 

Depreciation charges (17) (38) - (55) 

December 31, 2019     

Cost 493 150 104 747 

Accumulated depreciation (17) (38) - (55) 

Net book value 476 112 104 692 
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4.1.4. Long-term financial investments 

Investment in long-term financial investments has not took place during 2019. 

4.1.5. Inventory 

Inventory are evaluated at the lower of two values: at cost or net value of sales of goods sold 

separately. The costs of purchase of inventories consist of the price of purchase, import duties and 

other taxes, as well as the costs of transportation, loading and unloading and other costs directly 

related to the purchase of finished products, materials and services. 

Assessment of disposal of inventories is carried out: according to the method of identified cost-for 

stocks, where possible identification of stocks; By the method of FIFO-for those stocks where the 

identification is impossible. 

As of December 31, 2019, stocks comprise 0 thousand UAH 

4.1.6. Receivables 

The Company recognizes accounts receivable as an asset if there is a possibility of future economic 

benefits, and its amount can be reliably determined. Accounts receivable are measured at fair 

value. The Company is reviewing receivables for impairment at each reporting date. If there is 

evidence of impairment, the receivables cost decreases to the amount of allowance for impairment 

losses. The amount of the allowance is determined based on the debtors ' analysis and reflects the 

amount that is in the management's opinion sufficient to cover incurred losses. In the event of a 

change in the fair value of receivables that occur on the reporting date, the changes are recognized 

in the profit (loss). Accounts receivable are reflected in the amount of expected receipt. 

As of December 31, 2019, accounts receivable include: 

- receivables for accrued revenues in the amount of 13,817 thousand UAH

- other current accounts receivable amounting to 63,609 thousand UAH

The amount of allowance for impairment losses as of December 31, 2019 is 5,974 thousand UAH 

4.1.7. Cash and cash equivalents 

As of 31.12.2019, the amount of cash and cash equivalents in banks amounts to 152 thousand 

UAH. 

4.1.8 Equity 

Equity element 000’UAH 

Authorized capital 7000 

Additional capital (279) 

Retained earnings (loss) 150 

Unpaid capital (76) 

Total equity 6,795 

The authorized capital of the Company formed the contributions of company members exclusively 

in monetary form. The size of the authorized capital is recorded in the Company charter. The 

authorized capital may be increased due to profits from the company's economic activities, as well 

as at the expense of additional contributions of its participants. As of December 31, 2019, the 

amount of registered capital is 7,000 thousand UAH 

The Reserve capital is formed at the expense of retained earnings profits by decision of the general 

meeting of Founders (participants) and in accordance with the company statute. 
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The reserve capital of the company is created in the amount of not less than 25% of the statutory 

capital of company and is intended to cover expenses related to reimbursement of losses and 

planned expenses. Reserve Capital Fund is formed by annual deductions in the amount of not less 

than 5% of the annual profit of the company to achieve a predetermined size. As of December 31, 

2019, the amount of reserve capital is 0 thousand UAH. 

Retained earnings (accumulated loss) at the end of the reporting period is 150 thousand UAH, the 

unpaid capital (76) thousand UAH. 

The total amount of equity of the company in 31.12.2019 is 6795 thousand UAH. 

4.1.9. Commitments and provisions 

The reporting date of obligation and provision in the statement of financial position is reflected in 

the following way: 

 
(thousands of Hryvna's) December 31, 2019 

  

Current accounts payable for goods, works, services 2,581 

Short-term bank loans 70,340 

Current liabilities on settlements with the budget 33 

- For insurance 0 

- On wages 0 

Current liabilities 118 

Other current liabilities 2,745 

Total liabilities 75,817 

 

At December 31, 2019, the Company's commitment amounted to 75,817 thousand UAH. 

 

4.2. Statement of financial Results (Statement of comprehensive income) 

All articles of income and expenses recognized in reporting periods are included in the report on 

the financial results (statement of comprehensive income). 

The costs are reflected in the accounting at the same time as a decrease in assets or increased 

liabilities. Expenditures of the reporting period are recognized by either reducing the assets or 

increasing the liabilities resulting in the reduction of the company's equity capital, provided that 

these costs can be reliably assessed. 

Expenditures are recognized for a certain period at the same time as an acknowledgment of the 

income to be received. 

Provided that an estimate of income can be reliably determined, the income in the statement of 

financial results is displayed at the time of an asset's receipt or repayment of the obligation that 

leads to an increase in equity capital of the enterprise. 

Provided that the cost estimate can be reliably determined, the costs are reflected in the financial 

results report at the time of the asset's disposal or increase in liabilities. 

Revenues and expenses are usually taken into account based on the accrual basis, depending on 

the degree of completion of a particular transaction, which is evaluated as the ratio of actually 

provided volume of services and the total volume of services to be provided. 

The company receives revenues in the form of accrued interest and commissions for the provision 

of funds in the loan, including on the terms of the financial credit. The income of the company 

from providing funds in a loan, including on the terms of a financial loan is recognized daily, based 
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on the size of the remuneration stipulated by the contract. At that, the day of issuance is credited 

in the period of accrual and repayment day is not credited 

(thousands of Hryvna's) Line code 2019 

Net income from sales of the product (goods, works, services) 2000 47,336 

Other Operating income 2120 5,487 

Administrative expenses 2130 (14,798) 

Sales costs 2150 (18,592) 

Other operating expenses 2180 (17,946) 

Financial results from operating activities 

Profit 2190 1487 

Other finance income 2220 - 

Other income 2240 30 

Finance costs 2250 (1,334) 

Financial result before taxation 2290 183 

Income tax expense (income) 2300 (33) 

NET financial result 

Profit 2355 150 

4.3. Income tax 

Income tax is presented in the amount of current income tax payable. Income tax is calculated 

according to the tax code of Ukraine. The amount of current tax payable is calculated on the 

amount of taxable profit for the year. The company's commitment to the current tax is calculated 

using tax rates that are valid or effective on the reporting date. 

Annual income of the Company for the year 2019 for taxation purposes is determined by the rules 

of accounting without adjusting the financial result before taxation for tax differences, defined in 

accordance with the GCC provisions. 

4.4. Statement of Cash Flows 

The Statement of cash-flows for 2019 is based on the requirements of IAS 7 according to the direct 

method, according to which the information on the main classes of the gross income of monetary 

funds or gross cash payments on a net basis is disclosed. The report reflected cash flow from 

operating, investment and financial activities of the company. 

Cash flows of the company from the operating, investment and financial activities in account of 

the P (s) BECAUSE not differed from IFRS. 

4.4.1 Cash flow from operating activities 

Operating activities conducted is to gain profits from ordinary activities. 

Net cash flow from operating activities: – 75,004 thousand UAH. 

4.4.2. Cash flow from investment activities 

Investment activity is a purposefully undertaken process of formation of the necessary investment 

resources, balanced according to the chosen parameters of the investment Program (investment 

Portfolio) based on the choice of effective investment objects and ensuring their implementation. 

NET movement of funds from the investment activity: 0 thousand UAH. 
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4.4.3 Cash flow from financing activity 

Financial activity is the receipt or use of funds that took place as a result of replenishment of own 

capital, emission of securities, redemption of own shares, payment of dividends, and repayment of 

liabilities under debt securities. 

Net cash flow from financial activity: 75,377 thousand UAH. 

4.5. Statement of changes in equity 

On the 31.12.2019 of the Year: 

The registered capital is 7,000 thousand UAH. 

The statutory capital was paid in the amount of 6,924 thousand UAH. 

The reserve capital is 0 thousand UAH. 

Retained earnings profit accounting is carried out in accordance with the current legislation. Net 

profit (loss) for the December 31, 2019 is 150 thousand UAH. 

The total amount of equity in the company is December 31, 2019 6,795 thousand UAH. 

5. Disclosure of other information

5.1. Capital Management

The company carries out capital management to achieve the following goals: 

✓ Maintain the capacity of the company to continue its activities so that it will continue to

provide income for company members and payments to other stakeholders.

✓ To ensure proper profit to the company members due to the establishment of prices for

services of the company that correspond to risk level.

✓ To ensure the compliance with capital requirements established by the regulator

The Company performs review of capital structures on an annual basis. At the same time, the 

management analyzes the cost of capital and its component risks inherent. Based on the findings 

the company has to regulate capital by attracting additional capital or financing, as well as the 

payment of dividends and repayment of existing loans. 

5.2. Contingent liabilities and assets 

The Company does not recognize contingent commitments. The information about the 

conditionals is disclosed when the economic benefits are probable. The information about the 

conditionals is disclosed if the possibility of disposal of resources that embody the economic 

benefits is not remote. 

Lawsuits 

The company uses official control procedures as well as legal risk management policy. If the 

current obligation is incurred as a result of past events that are likely to require cash flow and 

potential losses can be reasonably priced, the company will accumulate reserves to cover all the 

negative consequences of these risks to their financial condition. 

The Company did not participate in any litigation proceedings in 2019. 

At the date of preparation and approval of the financial statements, there was no noticed of any 

unpredictable obligation or obligation to perform, information about what is required to disclose 

or adjust in the financial statements. 
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5.3. Staff costs 

Methodological bases of the formation in accounting of information about operations for personnel 

payments and disclosure in the financial statements are carried out in accordance with the 

requirements of IAS 19 "Employee Benefits". 

In determining the value of liabilities for short-term rewards, employee discounting is not 

applicable, and the relevant costs are recognized as the employees perform their employment 

duties. 

Short-term rewards for employees, including salaries and social security premiums, bonuses and 

tempering allowances, are accounted for in the core costs according to the principles of service 

delivery. According to the legislation, the company makes contributions of a certain size to the 

State Social insurance fund for each employee during the entire period of the employee's 

employment. the company has no obligation to further payments due to pensions. 

5.4. Related party transactions 

Transactions with related parties are determined and reflected in the financial statements of the 

Company in accordance with IAS 24 "Disclosures of the related parties" and in accordance with 

the tax legislation of Ukraine. 

Related parties to the company are: 

- Founder – CJSC "LINEURA"

- Director of the Company

In the course of business activities, the company carried out transactions with related parties. The 

Director of the Company receives rewards in reporting periods that are reflected in the cost of 

labor remuneration. 

(thousand UAH) 

No p/p Name Amount of labor costs 

during the reporting period 

1 Pshenychnij Andriy Ivanovych 158 

Total 158 

5.5. Compliance with the requirements of IAS 29 "financial reporting in hyperinflationary 

economies" 

In Ukraine, the cumulative level of inflation for a three-year period (2017-2019) is 1.6% (the 

calculation of cumulative index for these three years: [(101:100) х (100.8:100) x (99.8:100) х 

100]-100 = 1.6), therefore, the company does not apply TO financial statements IAS 29 "Financial 

reporting in hyperinflationary economies". 

5.6. Events after the reporting date 

When preparing financial statements, the Company considers events that occurred after the 

reporting date and reflects them in the financial statements in accordance with IAS 10 "Events 

after the reporting period". 

The Company estimated in the period from December 31, 2019 the existence of the following 

events: events that indicate the conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (events 
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that require the adjustment of financial statements for the year 2019); and events that indicate the 

conditions that arose after the reporting period (events that do not require the adjustment of 

financial statements, but require certain disclosures). 

None of the above events were found. 

9.5. The decision on approval of the annual financial statements 

The annual financial statements of the Company approved by to be released (for the purpose of 

publication) by the head of the Company on February 26, 2020. Neither the members of the 

Company nor any other person have the right to amend the financial statements after its approval 

to be released. 

Director: Pshenychnij A. I. 

Chief accountant: Suhobrus I.P




